
 

 
 
 

JUNE 14, 2022 

 

5:00 P.M. 

 

CITY COUNCIL  
 

MEETING AGENDA 

 

                                                    



 

NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS                

  
Notice is hereby given that, beginning at 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, June 14, 2022, and continuing from day to 
day thereafter if necessary, the City Council of the City of Harker Heights, Texas, will hold a meeting in the Kitty 
Young Council Chamber at 305 Miller’s Crossing, Harker Heights, Texas 76548.  The subjects to be discussed 
are listed in the following agenda:  
  

MEETING AGENDA  
I. INVOCATION: 

  
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

 
I Pledge Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America and to the Republic for 
which it stands, one nation under God, indivisible, with liberty and justice for all. 
  
Honor the Texas Flag. I pledge allegiance to thee Texas; one State under God, one and 
indivisible. 
  

III. ROLL CALL: 
  

IV. MAYORAL PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS: 
  

1. Proclamation in Recognition of Lemonade Day – Entrepreneur of the Year.  
Proclamation 
  

V. CONSENT ITEMS: 
  

1. Discuss and consider approving the minutes of the meeting held on May 24, 2022, and take the 
appropriate action.  
Minutes 
  

VI. PRESENTATIONS BY CITIZENS: 
 
Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may do so during this item. Please 
understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code 
§551.042) prohibits them from: (1) engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific 
factual information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than directing Staff to 
place the matter on a future agenda. Please state your name and address for the record and limit your 
comments to three minutes. 
       

Page 1 of 186



 
 
VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

  
1. Conduct a Public Hearing to discuss and consider approving a Resolution of the City Council of the 

City of Harker Heights, Texas, authorizing the execution and delivery of an Addendum No. 7 to 
Amended and Restated Water Supply contract; Authorizing the Mayor and the City Manager to sign 
on behalf of the City, and take the appropriate action. (Public Works Director)  
Staff Report - Pdf 
  

2. Conduct a Public Hearing to discuss and consider approving an Ordinance of the City of Harker 
Heights, Texas, to change zoning designation from R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) to R-1 (M) 
(One-Family Manufactured Home Dwelling District) on a portion of the property described as 
McLaughlin Way, Block 001, Lot 0001, acres 4.46, generally located at 1517 Waco Trace, Harker 
Heights, Bell County, Texas, as displayed in Exhibit A, and take the appropriate action. (Planning and 
Development Director)  
Staff Report - Pdf 
  

3. Conduct a Public Hearing to discuss and consider approving an Ordinance of the City of Harker 
Heights, Texas, to change zoning designation from R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) to R-1 (One-
Family Dwelling District) with a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for a Pet Grooming Business 
to operate as a Home Occupation on property described as Highland Oaks Estates Section 1, Block 
00F, Lot 14, pt 15, (W 1/2 of 15), acres 0.441, generally located at 100 E. Woodlawn Drive, Harker 
Heights, Bell County, Texas, and take the appropriate action. (Planning and Development Director)  
Staff Report - Pdf 
  

4. Conduct a Public Hearing to discuss and consider approving an Ordinance of the City of Harker 
Heights, Texas, to change zoning designation from R-3 (Multi-Family Dwelling District) to R2-I (Two-
Family Infill Dwelling District) on properties described as Meadow Acres, Block 005, Lot Pt 2, (E 1/2 
Of 2), generally located at 214 W. Bob White Lane, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, and Meadow 
Acres, Block 005, Lot Pt 2 (W 1/2 Of 2), generally located at 216 W. Bob White Lane, Harker Heights, 
Bell County, Texas, and take the appropriate action. (Planning and Development Director)  
Staff Report - Pdf 
  

5. Conduct a Public Hearing to discuss and consider approving an Ordinance of the City of Harker 
Heights, Texas, to change zoning designation from R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) to R-2 (Two-
Family Dwelling District) on property described as Valley View, Block 002, Lot 0009, generally 
located at 117 E. Valley Rd., Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, and take the appropriate action. 
(Planning and Development Director)  
Staff Report - Pdf   

VIII. REGULAR BUSINESS:   
1. Discuss and consider approving a Final Plat referred to as Fireside Heights Addition, on property 

described as a 0.799 acre tract of land in Bell County, Texas, being part of the Elizabeth Dawson 
Survey, Abstract No. 258, the land herein being part of Lot 1, Block 1, Fireside Addition, an addition 
to the City of Harker Heights, Texas, being of record in Cabinet C, Slide 199-D, Plat Records of Bell 
County, Texas (P.R.B.C.T.), and being a called 0.80 acre tract of land conveyed in a General 
Warranty Deed to J & U Properties, LLC, being described in Exhibit “A” of Record Instrument No. 
2015-00008355, Official Public Records of Real Property, Bell County, Texas (O.P.R.R.P.B.C.T.), 
and take the appropriate action. (Planning and Development Director)  
Staff Report - Pdf 

Page 2 of 186



 
 
2. Discuss and consider approving a Final Plat referred to as Filmtech Addition, on property described 

as a 1.454 acre tract of land in Bell County, Texas, being part of the Uriah Hunt Survey, Abstract No. 
401, the land herein being all of a Called 1.455 acre tract of land conveyed in a Warranty Deed with 
Vendor’s Lien to Filmtech.Com, LLC, being described in Exhibit “A” of record in Instrument No. 
2020027121, Official Public Records of Real Property, Bell County, Texas (O.P.R.R.P.B.C.T.), and 
take the appropriate action. (Planning and Development Director)  
Staff Report - Pdf 
  

3. Discuss and consider approving a Final Plat referred to as Comanche Land, Third Unit, on property 
described being all that certain 0.77 acre tract of land situated in the H.B. Littlefied Survey, A-511, 
Bell County, Texas, being all of Lots 1 and 8, Block 37, Comanche Land Third Unit, and Un-
Recorded Subdivision In the City of Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, said lots being described in 
a Deed to Monica Kankelfitz, recorded in Volume 3757, Page 245, Deed Records of Bell County, 
Texas, and said lots being further described as “Tract I” Called 0.346 acre tract and “Tract III” Called 
0.42 acre tract in a Deed to James L. Dahm & Wife, Paola Dahm, recorded in Volume 1312, Page 
582, Deed Records of Bell County, Texas, and take the appropriate action. (Planning and 
Development Director)  
Staff Report - Pdf 
  

4. Discuss and consider approving a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Harker Heights, Texas, 
suspending the June 17, 2022, effective date of Oncor Electric Delivery Company's requested rate 
change to permit the City time to study the request and to establish reasonable rates; Approving 
cooperation with the Steering Committee of Cities Served by Oncor to hire legal and consulting 
services and to negotiate with the Company and direct any necessary litigation and appeals; Finding 
that the meeting at which this Resolution is passed is open to the public as required by law; 
Requiring notice of this Resolution to be sent to the Company and legal counsel for the Steering 
Committee and take the appropriate action. (Finance Director)  
Staff Report - Pdf 
  

5. Discuss and consider approving a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Harker Heights, Texas, 
awarding a Contract for the Annual Supply of Water Meters in the amount of $144,717.60 to Core & 
Main and take the appropriate action. (Public Works Director)  
Staff Report - Pdf 
  

6. Receive and discuss the City Manager's Report. (City Manager) 
   

IX. ITEMS FROM COUNCIL AND ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
  

1. Councilmember closing statements. 
   

2. Updates and announcements from the Mayor.  
               

Page 3 of 186



 
 
X. ADJOURNMENT: 

  
I hereby certify that the above notice of meeting was posted on the bulletin board of City Hall, City of Harker 
Heights, Texas, a place readily accessible to the general public at all times, on 10th of June, 2022, by 4:00 p.m. 
and remained posted for at least 72 continuous hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting.  
  
  
  
Julie Helsham  
City Secretary  
  
This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations 
or interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary's office 
at 254-953-5600, or FAX 254-953-5614, or email jhelsham@harkerheights.gov for further information.  
  
Pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Government Code the City Council reserves the right to go into Closed Meeting 
on any item listed above if deemed necessary.  
  
Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order. 

Page 4 of 186

mailto:jhelsham@harkerheights.gov


 

 
Proclamation 

 
Whereas, Lemonade Day is a community-wide educational event providing children with the 
opportunity to learn and apply entrepreneurial thinking and create a foundation for success in the 
global economy; and 
 
Whereas, Lemonade Day exists to infuse today’s youth with the spirit of enterprise, teaching the 
basic business and entrepreneurial skills necessary to become successful, contributing members of 
the community; and 
 
Whereas, Michael Thompson accepted the challenge to start, own, and operate his first Lemonade 
Day Stand “GamerAde” and was named the 2022 Lemonade Day Fort Hood Area Entrepreneur of 
the Year; and  
 
Whereas, Michael learned goal-setting, developing a business plan, establishing a budget, seeking 
investors, providing customer service and giving back to the community; and  
 
Whereas, Michael earned a total revenue of $297.97 from Lemonade Day and donated a portion of 
the profit he made to the Texas Humane Heroes nonprofit organization. 
 
 
Now Therefore, I, Spencer H. Smith, Mayor of the City of Harker Heights, Texas, declare Michael 
Thompson to be a 
 

"Bright Star of Central Texas" 
 
 
In Testimony Whereof, I have signed this Proclamation and have affixed the Seal of the City of 
Harker Heights this 14nd Day of June, 2022. 
 
 
 

                                                   
        Spencer H. Smith, Mayor 

Harker Heights, Texas 

AGENDA ITEM #IV.1.

Page 5 of 186



Minutes of the City of Harker Heights Council Meeting that was called to order on Tuesday, May 24, 
2022, at 5:00 p.m., in the Harker Heights Activities Center, Room A, 400 Indian Trail, Harker Heights, 
Texas, with the following members present: 
  
ROLL CALL: Mayor Spencer H Smith 

Mayor Pro Tem Jennifer McCann 
Councilmember Michael Blomquist 
Councilmember Lynda Nash 
Councilmember Sam Halabi  
 
City Manager David Mitchell 
City Secretary Julie Helsham 
 

EXCUSED: Councilmember Tony Canterino 

 
CONSENT ITEMS: 
  
1. Council discussed and considered approving the minutes of the special meeting and regular 

meeting held on May 10, 2022. 
 
Councilmember Blomquist made a motion to approve the minutes of the special meeting and regular 
meeting held on May 10, 2022. Councilmember Halabi seconded the motion. Carried unanimously. 
 
PRESENTATIONS BY CITIZENS: 
 
Patrick Abrams, 813 Mustang Trail, Harker Heights, Texas, 76548, gave a presentation. 

 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
  
1. Council received and discussed the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Second Quarter Investment Report. 

Ayesha Lealiiee, Finance Director, made the presentation.  No action taken. 
  

2. Council discussed and considered approving an Ordinance of the City of Harker Heights, Texas, 
amending Title VII Transportation Code, Chapters 70, 71, 72, 74, and 75. Phil Gadd, Police 
Chief, and Commander Randy Stefek, made the presentation.  

 
Councilmember Blomquist made a motion to approve an Ordinance of the City of Harker Heights, Texas, 
amending Title VII Transportation Code of the Harker Heights Code.   Councilmember Nash seconded 
the motion. Carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
  

AGENDA ITEM #V.1.

Page 6 of 186



City Council 
May 24, 2022 

3. Council discussed and considered approving an amendment to the Economic Development 
Incentive Agreement with Gambit Social House, Inc. (“gambit”) modifying the construction 
completion date to October 31, 2022, for the administration of one or more programs for making 
grants or loans of public money to promote economic development and stimulate business and 
commercial activities within the City; and authorize the City Manager to sign the agreement on 
behalf of the city. Jerry Bark, Assistant City Manager, made the presentation. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem McCann made a motion to approve amending the economic development incentive 
agreement with Gambit Social House, Inc., modifying the construction completion date to October 31, 
2022, for the administration of one or more programs for making grants or loans of public money to 
promote economic development and stimulate business and commercial activities within the City; and 
authorize the City Manager to sign the agreement on behalf of the City. Councilmember Halabi seconded 
the motion. Carried unanimously. 
  
4. Council received and discussed the City Manager's Report.  David Mitchell, City Manager, made 

the presentation. No action taken. 
 
ITEMS FROM COUNCIL AND ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
  
1. Councilmember closing statements. 

 
Councilmember Blomquist stated that he attended the following events: 

• May 12th – Harker Heights After Hours Chamber Business Social hosted by Smile 
Doctors. 

• May 14th – Harker Heights Farmer’s Market at City Hall. 
• May 19th – Harker Heights Chamber Lunch Mob at Bella Sera Restaurant. 
• May 21st – Harker Heights Farmer’s Market at City Hall. 
• May 24th – Killeen Independent School District Board of Trustee Meeting for a 

swearing-in ceremony.  
 
Councilmember Blomquist encouraged all citizens to come and check out the Harker Heights 
Farmer’s Market on Saturday starting at 9:00 a.m. Blomquist stated that the Memorial Walk is 
also scheduled on Saturday, at 9:00 a.m. so everyone can still walk over to the Harker Heights 
Farmer’s Market.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem McCann stated she was able to make it to the Harker Heights Farmer’s Market 
after waiting in the parking lot of the very busy Baseball Fields for about 30 minutes.  McCann 
stated the Farmer’s Market had a great turn out.   
 
Councilmember Halabi stated that he also attended the Harker Heights Farmer’s Market.  Halabi 
stated from May 21st to the 23rd he had the honor of visiting the National Training Center in Fort 
Irwin, California.  Halabi stated it was an amazing experience to see what our soldiers go through 
and hard they train.    
 
Councilmember Nash stated that on May 21st the Harker Heights Community Resource Center 
held its every 3rd Saturday Food Distribution off of Veteran’s Memorial and if you want to 

AGENDA ITEM #V.1.

Page 7 of 186



City Council 
May 24, 2022 

volunteer, to come on out.  Nash stated that she attended the Hoop Fest at Shoemaker High 
School that our Harker Heights Police Department participated in and “Rocked it”. Nash also 
stated she attended a Business Mixer. 
  

2. Update and announcements from the Mayor. 
 
Mayor Smith stated that he attended the following events: 

• May 12th – Central Texas Council of Governments Executive Board Meeting in Belton. 
• May 12th – Harker Heights City Hall Meeting with City Staff. 
• May 13th – III Corps Reception and Ribbon-cutting Ceremony at the People First Center 

at Fort Hood. 
• May 17th – Harker Heights City Council Workshop at the Harker Heights Activity 

Center. 
• May 19th – Harker Heights Cares Committee Meeting at the Harker Heights Activity 

Center. 
• May 19th – Harker Heights Chamber of Commerce Lunch Mob at Bella Sera Restaurant. 
• May19th – Killeen Education Foundation Starmaker’s Awards Ceremony and Banquet 

at the Killeen Conference and Convention Center for five KISD High Schools. 
• May 21st – Harker Heights Farmer’s Market. 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
There being no further business the City of Harker Heights City Council Meeting was adjourned at 5:43 
p.m. 

 

    

CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 
  
  
  

    Spencer H. Smith, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
  
  
  

    

Julie Helsham, City Secretary     
 

AGENDA ITEM #V.1.

Page 8 of 186



 

City Council Memorandum 
 

 
FROM: The Office of the City Manager DATE: June 14, 2022 

 
A APPROVING CONSIDER DISCUSS AND HEARING PUBLIC A CONDUCT TO 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN ADDENDUM NO. 7 TO AMENDED 
AND RESTATED WATER SUPPLY CONTRACT, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND THE 
CITY MANAGER TO SIGN ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE 
ACTION. (PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR) 
 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The 87th Texas Legislature (2021) passed Senate Bill 3, which amended various sections of 
the Texas Code, including Texas Water Code Chapter 13 to include additional provisions for 
emergency preparedness.  Affected water utilities, including Bell County Water Control & 
Improvement District No. 1 (WCID No. 1), are required to develop/update and implement an 
emergency preparedness plan that demonstrates the utility's ability to provide emergency 
operations during an extended power outage at a minimum water pressure of 20 psi.   
The consultant for the WCID No. 1 has determined that standby generators are the best option 
for providing backup power to the Lake Belton Water Treatment Plant during an extended 
power outage.   
Excluding Fort Hood's contribution, the project total in the amount of $11,330,000, would be 
funded through Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A.  The maximum aggregate 
principal amount for the City of Harker Heights is $2,065,000. The debt service percentage 
breakdown for each of the water plant customers are as follows:  
  
Allocation of Debt Service on the Bonds: 
 
Customer    Debt Service  

Percentage([1]) 
City of Killeen    43.2432%  
City of Copperas Cove    18.2432  
City of Harker Heights    18.2432  
City of Belton    13.5135  
Bell County Water Control 
and 
     Improvement District No. 
3  

  2.7027  

439 Water Supply 
Corporation   4.0541  

    100.0000%  
 
([1]) Reflects, in each case, an allocation of debt service on the Bonds to the Customers 

calculated in accordance with Paragraph 9(A)(4)(a)(1) of the Water Supply Contract. 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.1.

Page 9 of 186



 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The Public Works Director recommends approving a resolution authorizing the execution and 
delivery of an Addendum No. 7 to amended and restated water supply contract. 
 
ACTION BY THE COUNCIL: 
1. Motion to approve/disapprove a Resolution authorizing the execution and delivery of an 
Addendum No. 7 to amended and restated water supply contract, and authorize the Mayor and 
City Manager to sign on behalf of the City.  
2. Any other action desired. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Proposed Resolution 
General Certificate of City of Harker Heights Series 2022A 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.1.

Page 10 of 186



  

RESOLUTION NO. _______________ 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN ADDENDUM NO. 
7 TO AMENDED AND RESTATED WATER SUPPLY CONTRACT 

WHEREAS, the City of Harker Heights, Texas (the “City”), has previously entered into that certain 
Amended and Restated Water Supply Contract, made and entered into as of April 1, 2004, as amended by 
a First Amendment to Amended and Restated Water Supply Contract, made and entered into as of January 
29, 2014, (as amended, the “Water Supply Contract”), each by and between the City and Bell County 
Water Control and Improvement District No. 1 (the “District”); and   

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the District’s Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 
2022A (the “Bonds”), the City Council of the City considers it to be necessary and desirable to enter into 
an Addendum No. 7 to the Water Supply Contract (“Addendum No. 7”); 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City that: 

(1) Addendum No. 7, in substantially the form set forth in Exhibit A, between the District and 
the City, is hereby approved, with such changes as the Mayor or City Manager of the City 
may approve, with such approval to be evidenced conclusively by the execution thereof; 

(2) the Mayor and City Manager are each hereby separately authorized to execute and deliver, 
and the City Secretary is authorized to attest to, Addendum No. 7 and the Mayor, City 
Manager and City Secretary are each authorized to take such further actions and execute 
such further instruments as may be necessary to implement the provisions and intent of 
this Resolution and to facilitate the issuance and delivery of the Bonds by the District; 

(3) the meeting at which this Resolution is being adopted is open to the public as required by 
law and public notice of the date, hour, place and subject of said meeting was given as 
required by the Texas Open Meetings Act; and 

(4) this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 14th day of June, 2022. 

 

_______________________________________ 
                    Spencer H. Smith, Mayor 
                    City of Harker Heights 
ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 
Julie Helsham, City Secretary 
City of Harker Heights 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.1.

Page 11 of 186

upaddie
Highlight



PAGE 1 OF ADDENDUM 
# DM-8226475.2

Addendum No. 7 
(City of Harker Heights) 

This Addendum No. 7 (this “Addendum”) relates to that certain Amended and Restated 
Water Supply Contract, made and entered into as of April 1, 2004, as amended by that certain 
First Amendment to Amended and Restated Water Supply Contract, made and entered into as of 
January 29, 2014 (collectively, the “Water Supply Contract”), each by and between the Bell 
County Water Control and Improvement District No. 1 and the City of Harker Heights, Texas 
(the “Purchaser”), and is an addendum to the Water Supply Contract for all purposes, including, 
particularly, for the purposes of Paragraph 9 and Paragraph 12 of the Water Supply Contract. 

Bond Name:  Bell County Water Control and Improvement District No. 1 Water System 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A (the “Bonds”). 

Aggregate Principal Amount of Bonds: Not to exceed $11,330,000 (the “Maximum 
Aggregate Principal Amount”). 

Purpose:  Construction of modifications to the Lake Belton Water Plant. 

Allocation of Debt Service on the Bonds: 

Customer 
Debt Service 
Percentage(1) 

City of Killeen 43.2432% 
City of Copperas Cove 18.2432 
City of Harker Heights 18.2432 
City of Belton 13.5135 
Bell County Water Control and 
     Improvement District No. 3 

2.7027 

439 Water Supply Corporation 4.0541 
100.0000% 

Based on the Maximum Aggregate Principal Amount and the Debt Service Percentages 
set forth above, the principal amount of the Bonds to be allocated to and charged to the Purchaser 
is $2,065,000 (the “Purchaser’s Allocated Principal Amount”), which has been rounded to 
conform to the authorized denominations of the Bonds.  The Purchaser’s Allocated Principal 
Amount is preliminary and subject to market conditions at the time of pricing the Bonds.  The 
debt service requirements relating to such principal amount shall be charged to the Purchaser as 
fixed charges in accordance with Paragraph 9 of the Water Supply Contract and shall be charged 
substantially in accordance with the schedule set forth in Exhibit A to this Addendum.  The 
amounts shown in such schedule do not include any amounts that may be included in fixed 
charges for deposit into the debt service reserve fund for the Bonds to cover any future 
deficiencies in the reserve fund or for payment of debt service on any other bonds of the District.  

(1) Reflects, in each case, an allocation of debt service on the Bonds to the Customers calculated in accordance
with Paragraph 9(A)(4)(a)(1) of the Water Supply Contract.

Exhibit A
AGENDA ITEM #VII.1.

Page 12 of 186

upaddie
Highlight



 

PAGE 2 OF ADDENDUM 
# DM-8226475.2 

Further, the Purchaser recognizes that the District will bill and collect fixed charges allocable to 
the Purchaser through its monthly billing process. 

The final pricing of the Bonds will affect the Purchaser’s Allocated Principal Amount set 
forth herein and the debt service schedule set forth in Exhibit A hereto.  Following the final 
pricing of the Bonds, the District will provide an amended Exhibit A to the Purchaser reflecting 
the final Purchaser’s Allocated Principal Amount and the debt service requirements relating 
thereto, and this Addendum shall be deemed to be amended to incorporate and conform to the 
amended Exhibit A. 

If upon the completion of all projects to be constructed with the proceeds of the Bonds 
there remain unexpended Bond proceeds, the District may, in accordance with the order 
authorizing the issuance of the Bonds, use such unexpended Bond proceeds to pay, redeem or 
defease outstanding Bonds, or to construct additional facilities or for other purposes permitted 
under the order authorizing the Bonds.  Any such redemption or defeasance will affect the debt 
service schedule set forth in Exhibit A.  The District shall provide written notice to the Purchaser 
of any such redemption or defeasance, together with an amended Exhibit A.  Upon the giving of 
such notice, this Addendum shall be deemed to be amended to incorporate and conform to the 
amended Exhibit A. 

[EXECUTION PAGE FOLLOWS] 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.1.

Page 13 of 186



 

PAGE 3 OF ADDENDUM 
# DM-8226475.2 

 

EXECUTED this the _____ day of __________________, 2022, in Bell County, Texas. 

 

BELL COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1 

 

By:        
President, Board of Directors 

 

ATTEST: 

 

       
Secretary 

 

CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS 
(Purchaser) 

 

        
 

        

[Name and Title] 
 

ATTEST: 

 

       
Secretary 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.1.

Page 14 of 186



Bell County WC&ID #1 
$2,065,000 Waterworks System Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 
For Purposes of Illustration Only 
(Harker Heights Portion) 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I
09/30/2022 - - - -
09/30/2023 - - 79,760.63 79,760.63
09/30/2024 70,000.00 4.500% 92,925.00 162,925.00
09/30/2025 75,000.00 4.500% 89,775.00 164,775.00
09/30/2026 80,000.00 4.500% 86,400.00 166,400.00
09/30/2027 80,000.00 4.500% 82,800.00 162,800.00
09/30/2028 85,000.00 4.500% 79,200.00 164,200.00
09/30/2029 90,000.00 4.500% 75,375.00 165,375.00
09/30/2030 95,000.00 4.500% 71,325.00 166,325.00
09/30/2031 95,000.00 4.500% 67,050.00 162,050.00
09/30/2032 100,000.00 4.500% 62,775.00 162,775.00
09/30/2033 105,000.00 4.500% 58,275.00 163,275.00
09/30/2034 110,000.00 4.500% 53,550.00 163,550.00
09/30/2035 115,000.00 4.500% 48,600.00 163,600.00
09/30/2036 120,000.00 4.500% 43,425.00 163,425.00
09/30/2037 125,000.00 4.500% 38,025.00 163,025.00
09/30/2038 130,000.00 4.500% 32,400.00 162,400.00
09/30/2039 140,000.00 4.500% 26,550.00 166,550.00
09/30/2040 145,000.00 4.500% 20,250.00 165,250.00
09/30/2041 150,000.00 4.500% 13,725.00 163,725.00
09/30/2042 155,000.00 4.500% 6,975.00 161,975.00

Total $2,065,000.00 - $1,129,160.63 $3,194,160.63

Yield Statistics 

Bond Year Dollars $25,092.46
Average Life 12.151 Years
Average Coupon 4.5000000%

Net Interest Cost (NIC) 4.5731000%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 4.5969901%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 4.5576330%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 4.9411322%

IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 4.5000000%
Weighted Average Maturity 12.151 Years

22 wtr revs $10MM Net PCF  |  Harker Heights  |  5/25/2022  |  11:40 AM

Specialized Public Finance Inc.
Austin, Texas Page 1

Exhibit A

AGENDA ITEM #VII.1.

Page 15 of 186



 
DM-#8226084.1 

GENERAL CERTIFICATE OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS 

We, the undersigned Mayor, City Manager and City Secretary, respectively, of the City 
of Harker Heights, Texas (the “City”), hereby certify the following information in connection 
with the issuance and delivery of the Bell County Water Control and Improvement District No. 1 
Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A (the “Bonds”) being issued by the Bell County 
Water Control and Improvement District No. 1 (the “District”).  

(1) The City and the District previously entered into a certain water supply contract entitled 
“Amended and Restated Water Supply Contract,” made and entered into as of April 1, 
2004, as amended by a First Amendment to Amended and Restated Water Supply 
Contract, made and entered into as of January 29, 2014 (as amended, the “Water Supply 
Contract”), and the Water Supply Contract is currently in effect and has not been 
rescinded, modified or repealed. 

(2) The duly qualified and acting members and officers of the City Council and certain other 
officers of the City are as follows: 

Spencer H. Smith  Mayor 
Jennifer McCann  Mayor Pro Tem 
Michael Blomquist  Councilmember 
Tony Canterino  Councilmember 
Lynda Nash  Councilmember 
Sam Halabi  Councilmember 
   
David Mitchell  City Manager 
Julie Helsham  City Secretary 

 
(3) Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a true and correct copy of a resolution (the “Resolution”) 

adopted by the City Council of the City, authorizing the execution and delivery of an 
Addendum No. 7 to the Water Supply Contract (“Addendum No. 7”), between the City 
and the District, in substantially the form attached to the Resolution.  The Resolution was 
duly adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City held at the regular 
meeting place thereof, on June 14, 2022, and all members of the City Council identified 
in paragraph (2) above were present at such meeting, thus constituting a quorum.  The 
Resolution was duly introduced for consideration of the City Council and was approved 
by the unanimous vote of those present. Each member of the City Council was duly and 
sufficiently notified officially and personally in advance, of the time, place and purpose 
of the aforesaid meeting and that said Resolution would be introduced and considered for 
passage at said meeting. Said meeting was open to the public, and public notice of the 
time, place and purpose of said meeting was given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas 
Government Code, as amended. 

(4) All official action required for the execution, delivery and performance by the City of the 
Water Supply Contract and Addendum No. 7 have been effectively taken by the City and 
the City was duly authorized to enter into the Water Supply Contract and Addendum 
No. 7. 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.1.

Page 16 of 186



 -2- 
DM-#8226084.1 

(5) On the date of this Certificate we are, and at the time of execution of Addendum No. 7 on 
behalf of the City we were, the duly elected or appointed officials of the City holding the 
respective offices set forth next to our names below, and were duly authorized to execute 
Addendum No. 7 on behalf of the City. 

(6) No litigation is pending or, to our knowledge, threatened which would (i) affect the 
authority of the undersigned as officers of the City or their title to their respective offices, 
(ii) contest the authority for or the authorization, legality or validity of the Water Supply 
Contract or Addendum No. 7, or (iii) affect the source of payment for the Water Supply 
Contract. 

(7) The City is not in default under any of the provisions of the Water Supply Contract or 
Addendum No. 7. 

(8) Set forth in Exhibit B is a true and correct statement of the water and sewer rates 
currently in effect with respect to the City’s water and sewer system (the “System”). 

(9) Attached hereto as Exhibit C is a true and correct statement of the Condensed Statement 
of Operations, Debt Service Schedule and Projected Debt Service Coverage Ratio with 
respect to the System for the Fiscal Years stated therein (as more particularly described in 
footnote (1) of Exhibit C), and including a true and correct statement of the City’s 
proportionate share of debt service with respect to the Bonds and Bonds Similarly 
Secured.  There has not been any material adverse change in the financial condition of the 
City since the latest date as of which audited financial information is available. 

(10) None of the City’s payment obligations under the Water Supply Contract are payable 
from an ad valorem tax. 

(11) The Attorney General of Texas is hereby authorized and directed to date this Certificate 
concurrently with the date of approval of the Bonds, and can rely on the absence of any 
litigation or contest pertaining to the Bonds or any other matters covered by this 
Certificate, and on the veracity and currency of this Certificate at the time of approval of 
the Bonds, unless otherwise notified. 

 

[Execution page follows] 

 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.1.

Page 17 of 186



 Signature Page to General Certificate 
DM-#8226084.1 

EXECUTED AND DELIVERED ON _________________________________. 

Signatures Official Title 

__________________________________________ Spencer H. Smith 
Mayor 

__________________________________________ David Mitchell 
City Manager 

__________________________________________ Julie Helsham 
City Secretary 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
    § 
COUNTY OF BELL  § 

Before me, on this day personally appeared Spencer H. Smith, known to me to be the 
Mayor whose true and genuine signature was subscribed to the foregoing instrument in my 
presence. 

 
 __________________________________________ 
 Notary Public 
 State of Texas 
(NOTARY SEAL) Dated:         

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
    § 
COUNTY OF BELL  § 

Before me, on this day personally appeared David Mitchell, known to me to be the City 
Manager whose true and genuine signature was subscribed to the foregoing instrument in my 
presence. 

 
 __________________________________________ 
 Notary Public 
 State of Texas 
(NOTARY SEAL) Dated:         

AGENDA ITEM #VII.1.

Page 18 of 186



 Signature Page to General Certificate 
DM-#8226084.1 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
    § 
COUNTY OF BELL  § 

Before me, on this day personally appeared Julie Helsham, known to me to be the City 
Secretary whose true and genuine signature was subscribed to the foregoing instrument in my 
presence. 

 
 __________________________________________ 
 Notary Public 
 State of Texas 
(NOTARY SEAL) Dated:         

AGENDA ITEM #VII.1.

Page 19 of 186



 
DM-#8226084.1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

RESOLUTION 

(See attached) 

 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.1.

Page 20 of 186



RESOLUTION NO. _______________ 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN ADDENDUM NO. 
7 TO AMENDED AND RESTATED WATER SUPPLY CONTRACT 

WHEREAS, the City of Harker Heights, Texas (the “City”), has previously entered into that certain 
Amended and Restated Water Supply Contract, made and entered into as of April 1, 2004, as amended by 
a First Amendment to Amended and Restated Water Supply Contract, made and entered into as of January 
29, 2014, (as amended, the “Water Supply Contract”), each by and between the City and Bell County 
Water Control and Improvement District No. 1 (the “District”); and   

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the District’s Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 
2022A (the “Bonds”), the City Council of the City considers it to be necessary and desirable to enter into 
an Addendum No. 7 to the Water Supply Contract (“Addendum No. 7”); 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City that: 

(1) Addendum No. 7, in substantially the form set forth in Exhibit A, between the District and
the City, is hereby approved, with such changes as the Mayor or City Manager of the City
may approve, with such approval to be evidenced conclusively by the execution thereof;

(2) the Mayor and City Manager are each hereby separately authorized to execute and deliver,
and the City Secretary is authorized to attest to, Addendum No. 7 and the Mayor, City
Manager and City Secretary are each authorized to take such further actions and execute
such further instruments as may be necessary to implement the provisions and intent of
this Resolution and to facilitate the issuance and delivery of the Bonds by the District;

(3) the meeting at which this Resolution is being adopted is open to the public as required by
law and public notice of the date, hour, place and subject of said meeting was given as
required by the Texas Open Meetings Act; and

(4) this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 14th day of June, 2022. 

_______________________________________ 
 Spencer H. Smith, Mayor 

        City of Harker Heights 
ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
Julie Helsham, City Secretary 
City of Harker Heights 

Exhibit A
AGENDA ITEM #VII.1.

Page 21 of 186



 
DM-#8226084.1 

EXHIBIT B 
 

STATEMENT OF CURRENT WATER AND SEWER RATES 

(See attached) 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.1.

Page 22 of 186



 
DM-#8226084.1 

EXHIBIT C 
 

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS OF SYSTEM 
 

DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE AND PROJECTED DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.1.

Page 23 of 186



Bell County WC&ID #1 
$2,065,000 Waterworks System Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 
For Purposes of Illustration Only 
(Harker Heights Portion) 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I
09/30/2022 - - - -
09/30/2023 - - 79,760.63 79,760.63
09/30/2024 70,000.00 4.500% 92,925.00 162,925.00
09/30/2025 75,000.00 4.500% 89,775.00 164,775.00
09/30/2026 80,000.00 4.500% 86,400.00 166,400.00
09/30/2027 80,000.00 4.500% 82,800.00 162,800.00
09/30/2028 85,000.00 4.500% 79,200.00 164,200.00
09/30/2029 90,000.00 4.500% 75,375.00 165,375.00
09/30/2030 95,000.00 4.500% 71,325.00 166,325.00
09/30/2031 95,000.00 4.500% 67,050.00 162,050.00
09/30/2032 100,000.00 4.500% 62,775.00 162,775.00
09/30/2033 105,000.00 4.500% 58,275.00 163,275.00
09/30/2034 110,000.00 4.500% 53,550.00 163,550.00
09/30/2035 115,000.00 4.500% 48,600.00 163,600.00
09/30/2036 120,000.00 4.500% 43,425.00 163,425.00
09/30/2037 125,000.00 4.500% 38,025.00 163,025.00
09/30/2038 130,000.00 4.500% 32,400.00 162,400.00
09/30/2039 140,000.00 4.500% 26,550.00 166,550.00
09/30/2040 145,000.00 4.500% 20,250.00 165,250.00
09/30/2041 150,000.00 4.500% 13,725.00 163,725.00
09/30/2042 155,000.00 4.500% 6,975.00 161,975.00

Total $2,065,000.00 - $1,129,160.63 $3,194,160.63

Yield Statistics 

Bond Year Dollars $25,092.46
Average Life 12.151 Years
Average Coupon 4.5000000%

Net Interest Cost (NIC) 4.5731000%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 4.5969901%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 4.5576330%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 4.9411322%

IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 4.5000000%
Weighted Average Maturity 12.151 Years

22 wtr revs $10MM Net PCF  |  Harker Heights  |  5/25/2022  |  11:40 AM

Specialized Public Finance Inc.
Austin, Texas Page 1

Exhibit C

AGENDA ITEM #VII.1.

Page 24 of 186



City Council Memorandum

FROM: The Office of the City Manager DATE: June 14, 2022

CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AN 
ORDINANCE TO CHANGE ZONING DESIGNATION FROM R-1 (ONE-FAMILY DWELLING 
DISTRICT) TO R-1 (M) (ONE-FAMILY MANUFACTURED HOME DWELLING DISTRICT) ON 
A PORTION OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS MCLAUGHLIN WAY, BLOCK 001, LOT 
0001, ACRES 4.46, GENERALLY LOCATED AT 1517 WACO TRACE, HARKER HEIGHTS, 
BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS DISPLAYED IN EXHIBIT A, AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE 
ACTION. (PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR)

EXPLANATION:
The applicant is requesting a change from the current zoning of R-1 (One-Family Dwelling 
District) to R-1 (M) (One-Family Manufactured Home Dwelling District) on a portion of the 
property generally located at 1517 Waco Trace.  

Parcel History
This parcel was annexed in 1987. The annexation was repealed the same year and then re-
annexed in 1988. The approved plat for this parcel was filed with Bell County Real Property 
Records in 2003.
 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS:
Surrounding Land Uses
Adjacent land uses include those identified in the table below.
 

 
The 2021 Land Use Plan identifies this area being designated for Low Density Residential use. 
The proposed rezoning as shown in Exhibit A and with its intended use will not likely have any 
adverse impact on the neighborhood along Waco Trace and is consistent with the 2021 
updates to the City of Harker Heights Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Plan.
 
Thoroughfare Plan
 
Waco Trace is classified as a collector street in the Mobility 2030 Thoroughfare Plan. Per 
§154.01 of the City’s code of ordinances:

AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 25 of 186



 
 Minor Collectors are defined as:  “Streets generally located within subdivisions or 

between subdivisions to collect traffic from residential streets and to channel this traffic 
to major collectors. Residential lots may front on these streets. MINOR COLLECTORS 
shall be 42 feet wide, with a minimum of 70 feet of right-of-way.”

 
 Major Collectors are defined as: “Streets generally located along borders of 

neighborhoods and within commercial areas to collect and to channel this traffic to the 
arterial system. MAJOR COLLECTORS shall be 48 feet wide with a minimum of 80 feet 
of right-of-way. These are limited access roads on which no single-family or two-family 
residential lots may front (i.e., no driveways shall be allowed) unless there is no other 
reasonable and safe access to the lot.”

Flood Damage Prevention
No portion of this property lies within the 100 year or 500-year flood hazard areas.
 
Pharr vs. Tippett Considerations

1. The proposed use and rezoning are compatible with the current Comprehensive Plan 
and Land Use Plan. 

2. The proposed use and rezoning will have no adverse impact on surrounding properties. 
3. The proposed use and rezoning are compatible with existing uses and zoning in the 

neighborhood. 
4. The proposed use and rezoning do not pose an adverse impact to the public health, 

safety, or general welfare.
 
 
NOTICES:
 
Based on the most recently approved tax roll available, staff sent out fifty-nine (59) notices to 
property owners within the 400-foot notification area. As of June 7, 2022, four (4) responses 
were received in favor of the request, and fifty-six (56) responses were received in opposition 
of the request. Any additional responses received after the above date will be provided during 
the meeting. 

Five (5) of the responses in opposition are located on parcels located completely within the 
200-foot notification area, and six (6) response in opposition are for parcels located partially 
within the 200-foot notification area. 

Total area of land within the 200-foot notification area is: ~559,039.6 sq. ft. 
Total area of land within the 200-foot notification area recommending denial is: ~74,861.2 sq. 
Ft. 
Percentage of land area recommending denial: 13.39%

Per Texas Local Government Code Section 211.006, opposition that is written and signed by 
the owners of at least 20% of the area of the lots within the 200-foot buffer requires a super 
majority vote for approval. Note that when 20% of the number of landowners within the 200 
foot buffer have provided written and signed opposition, there is not a requirement of Texas 
Local Government Code nor the City’s Code of Ordinances for a super majority vote by the 
Planning & Zoning Commission.

AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 26 of 186



RECOMMENDATION:
Alternatives Considered
Staff considered two (2) alternatives for this case.

1. Recommend approval of the applicant’s zoning request as presented.
2. Recommend disapproval of the applicants zoning request.

 
Staff Recommendation
Staff recommended approval to the Planning & Zoning Commission of an ordinance to change 
zoning designation from R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) to R-1 (M) (One-Family 
Manufactured Home Dwelling District) on a portion of the property generally located at 1517 
Waco Trace, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, as displayed in Exhibit A.
 
 
ACTION TAKEN BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION:
 
During the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting held on May 25, 2022, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission voted (7-0) to recommend approval of an ordinance to grant R-2 (Two-
Family Dwelling District) for the property in this case, based on staff’s recommendation and 
findings.
 

ACTION BY THE COUNCIL:
Since the recommendation of the property was not approved by the Planning & Zoning 
Commission, per §155.212(D) (2) of the City of Harker Heights Code of Ordinances, a zoning 
district change will require a three-fourths (super-majority) approval vote from the City Council.

    (D) Vote Required
    “If such proposed amendment, supplement, or change has not been approved by the 
Planning and Zoning   Commission, the amendment, supplement or change shall not become 
effective except by a three-fourths approval vote by the City Council.”

1. Motion to approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove with explanation an 
ordinance to change zoning designation from R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) to R-1 
(M) (One-Family Manufactured Home Dwelling District) on a portion of the property 
described as McLaughlin Way, Block 001, Lot 0001, Acres 4.46, generally located at 
1517 Waco Trace, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, as displayed in Exhibit A, based 
on staff’s recommendation and findings.

2. Any other action deemed necessary.

ATTACHMENTS:
Z22-13_02-Attachments
Z22-13_03-PropOrdinance

AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 27 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 28 of 186



Exhibit A 

   

Proposed R-1(M) Zoning 

Proposed R-1(M) Zoning 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 29 of 186



A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VII.2.

Page 30 of 186



15
12

1602

1604

1609

1600

15
08

15
16

1601

1517
1510

16031513

1602

1521

15
09 1001

1503

15
20

1607

15
11

15
14

15
12

15
04

1519

1005

1605

15
16

15
17

15
21

1606

10111101

15
14

15
13

1009

1523
15

10
15

15

15
19

1907

1905

1907

1513

1100

1501
1006

1515

1003

1511

15
02

1502

15
15 1007

15
181511

1509

1908

15
06

15
07

1108
1106

15
05

15
06

1803

1501

1904
1103

1517

1107

15
18

1800

1204

1105

1506

1109

1106

1504

15
10

1811

15
05

1109

15
12

15
07

1503

1103
1102

1518

1202

1509

1503

1802

10031101

1510

1505

15
20

821

905

1503

1809

1805

1804

15
09

1411

1002

903

1003

1102

1800

1806

1502

1500

1801

15
04

15
14

1102

1110

1805

1903

1107

1402

1900

1504

15
08

1801

1413

1904

1903

15
10

1804

1701

1007

901

10011500

15
00

1807

16
33

1805

1608

1104

1511

1102

15
08

1108

1507

16
17

1520

1904

16
23

1111

1800

1806

1807

904

1003

1613

1008

1807

1813

1512

903

1903

1910

1909

1912

1903

905906

1005

15
06

1110

900
1916

1911

1501

14
09

14
10

1503

1004
1006

1902

1508

1901

1614

806

1004

1902

15
16

1506

902

1912

1804 1913

1210

1505

1509

1801

16
10

1001

1511

1915

16
18

17
03

1002

1611

1611

1512

1206

1101

1104

1510

900

1802

1906

1001

1901
1917

16
29

17
04

1807

1502

1505

1103

1522

16
25

1207

16
31

1501

1614

1214

1515

1509

1514

1516
1603

1513

1517

1608

1100

1905

1910

1201

8081802

16
12

1913

1905

<N
UL

L>

1601

1600

1906

<NULL>

902

1908

<NULL>

1805

20
00

810

1914

1911

1200

16
08

1601

1907

1520

1607

16
16

<N
U

LL>

1511

1509

16
141602

16
27

1808

1810

1902

1516

1814

1502

1609

1804

1900

1519

1605
1513

1901

1802

100

101

16
19

1208

1521

1513

16
06

16101400

16
2116

15

1209

907

1415

1412

1105

1803

180317
00

17
02

1613

1901

<NULL>
807

1515

1518 <NULL>

1812

1507

1904

1907

1515

1518

1509

1507

1511

1505

1501

1503
<NULL>

1525

1521

1523

1508

1600

<NULL>

<NULL>

1900

1511

<NULL>

<NULL>

<NULL>

OSAGE TRCE

SI
LV

ER
CR

EE
K

DR

CEDAR OAKS LN

M
EG

AN
 C

T

SPIC
EWOOD

CIR

O
A

K
TI

M
BE

R
S 

CI
R

AZTEC TR
CE

ZINFANDEL DR

EN
D 

O
 T

RA
IL

ROCKYRIDGE TRL

DAKO
TA TRCE

HI
GH

RID
GE TRL

MOUNTAIN VIEW CT

W
O

O
D

S HADOWS RD

ROCKY MOUNTAIN TRL

INDIAN
 TRAIL DR

LA
MBRUSCO

DR

PORT DR

MCGINNIS CT

CHA
BL

IS
DR

M
O

UNTAIN
VIEW

DR

CHARDONNAY DR
SUTTON PLACE TRL

PU
EB

LO
 T

RC
E

WACO TRCE

YUMA TRL

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

Z22-13

1517 Waco Trace

Location

0 200 400 600 800100
Feet

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VII.2.

Page 31 of 186



15
12

1602

1604

1609

1600

15
08

15
16

1601

1517
1510

16031513

1602

1521

15
09 1001

1503

15
20

1607

15
11

15
14

15
12

15
04

1519

1005

1605

15
16

15
17

15
21

1606

10111101

15
14

15
13

1009

1523
15

10
15

15

15
19

1907

1905

1907

1513

1100

1501
1006

1515

1003

1511

15
02

1502

15
15 1007

15
181511

1509

1908

15
06

15
07

1108
1106

15
05

15
06

1803

1501

1904
1103

1517

1107

15
18

1800

1204

1105

1506

1109

1106

1504

15
10

1811

15
05

1109

15
12

15
07

1503

1103
1102

1518

1202

1509

1503

1802

10031101

1510

1505

15
20

821

905

1503

1809

1805

1804

15
09

1411

1002

903

1003

1102

1800

1806

1502

1500

1801

15
04

15
14

1102

1110

1805

1903

1107

1402

1900

1504

15
08

1801

1413

1904

1903

15
10

1804

1701

1007

901

10011500

15
00

1807

16
33

1805

1608

1104

1511

1102

15
08

1108

1507

16
17

1520

1904

16
23

1111

1800

1806

1807

904

1003

1613

1008

1807

1813

1512

903

1903

1910

1909

1912

1903

905906

1005

15
06

1110

900
1916

1911

1501

14
09

14
10

1503

1004
1006

1902

1508

1901

1614

806

1004

1902

15
16

1506

902

1912

1804 1913

1210

1505

1509

1801

16
10

1001

1511

1915

16
18

17
03

1002

1611

1611

1512

1206

1101

1104

1510

900

1802

1906

1001

1901
1917

16
29

17
04

1807

1502

1505

1103

1522

16
25

1207

16
31

1501

1614

1214

1515

1509

1514

1516
1603

1513

1517

1608

1100

1905

1910

1201

8081802

16
12

1913

1905

<N
UL

L>

1601

1600

1906

<NULL>

902

1908

<NULL>

1805

20
00

810

1914

1911

1200

16
08

1601

1907

1520

1607

16
16

<N
U

LL>

1511

1509

16
141602

16
27

1808

1810

1902

1516

1814

1502

1609

1804

1900

1519

1605
1513

1901

1802

100

101

16
19

1208

1521

1513

16
06

16101400

16
2116

15

1209

907

1415

1412

1105

1803

180317
00

17
02

1613

1901

<NULL>
807

1515

1518 <NULL>

1812

1507

1904

1907

1515

1518

1509

1507

1511

1505

1501

1503
<NULL>

1525

1521

1523

1508

1600

<NULL>

<NULL>

1900

1511

<NULL>

<NULL>

<NULL>

OSAGE TRCE

SI
LV

ER
CR

EE
K

DR

CEDAR OAKS LN

M
EG

AN
 C

T

SPIC
EWOOD

CIR

O
A

K
TI

M
BE

R
S 

CI
R

AZTEC TR
CE

ZINFANDEL DR

EN
D 

O
 T

RA
IL

ROCKYRIDGE TRL

DAKO
TA TRCE

HI
GH

RID
GE TRL

MOUNTAIN VIEW CT

W
O

O
D

S HADOWS RD

ROCKY MOUNTAIN TRL

INDIAN
 TRAIL DR

LA
MBRUSCO

DR

PORT DR

MCGINNIS CT

CHA
BL

IS
DR

M
O

UNTAIN
VIEW

DR

CHARDONNAY DR
SUTTON PLACE TRL

PU
EB

LO
 T

RC
E

WACO TRCE

YUMA TRL

Z22-13

1517 Waco Trace

Zoning Districts
R-1 One-Family Dwelling District

R-1 (M) One-Family Manufactured Home Dwelling District

R-2 Two-Family Dwelling District

Zoning

0 200 400 600 800100
Feet

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VII.2.

Page 32 of 186



1105

1511
1523

1100

1508

1501

1111

1517

1607

1904

15
06

15
14

16
15

1200

1802 900

16
18

1610

<N
UL

L>

1102

<NULL>

1522

15
14

15
08

1912

15
10

1515

1807
1102

1500

806

100

808

1502

15
18

1510

15
09

1512

1904

904

1513

1503

15
17

1901

1104 1906

1518

1518

1104

1502

1601

1103

15
11

1802

1101

1412

20
00

16
10

1106

1803

16
29

15
16

1509

1509

16
25

1804

1901

1507

16
27

1511

1900

1613

1207

1502

1006

1809

1609

1002

1501

1005

1521
1900

<NULL>

1814

1510

1503

1601

1603

900
15

05

1907

1804

1003

17011511

1606

1108

1912

16
16

1502

14
10

1108

1514

1001

1206

1903

1805

1905
90215

04

1901

1810

15
16

902

1807

1509
1600

1005

16
33

1913

821

<NULL>

1904

1515

1903

1411

1106

1504

1512

1501

1908

1905

1102

1001

1806

16
23

1505

1415
17

02

1611

1505

1519

1413

15
06

1510

1907

1506

1208

17
03

1103

1509

1605

1004

901

1900

1604

15
05

1209

1608

1916

15
09

1515

15
07

905
15

16

16
17

1513

15
21

1806

1525 1513

1513

1511

16
14

<NULL>

101

1904

1801

906

1515

1003

1513

1517

1505

1504

1602

16
21

1609

1813

1520

14
09

1518

1509

<NULL>

1107

1608

1902
1011

15
04

1914

1501

1505

15
15

1802
15

10

1516

<NULL>

1001

1507

1614

1101

16
12

810

1400

1109

1803

<N
U

LL>

1402

1508

1602

1103

1503

1007

1903

16
08

1910

15
06

1800

1907

1600 1807

1601

1613

15
20

1107

1100

1004

1800

1802

15
07

16
31

15
10

1520

1801

1506

1906

903

1911

1901

100215
12

1003

1105
1110

1109

1007

15
18

1202

1101

17
04

<NULL>

1503

1003

1805

1500

15
1215

08

1905

1503

15
13

1511

1523

1511

15
08

1614

1509

1805

15
12

1801
1902

1603

<NULL>

15
02

1808

1611

1915

1602
1519 <NULL>

1911

807

1517

1903

1910

1503

1001
1807

1102
15

19

1804
1913

1521

1908

1501

15
14

15
00

1812

1210

1800

1201

15
15

1902

907

1511

1607

1521

1110

1006

1805

16
06

905
903

1009

17
00

1917

1204

1600

1811

1507

1008

15
20

1907

1605

1803

<NULL>

1804

1909

16
19

1516

1214

OSAGE TRCE

SI
LV

ER
CR

EE
K

DR

CEDAR OAKS LN

M
EG

AN
 C

T

SPIC
EWOOD

CIR

O
A

K
TI

M
BE

R
S 

CI
R

AZTEC TR
CE

ZINFANDEL DR

EN
D 

O
 T

RA
IL

ROCKYRIDGE TRL

DAKO
TA TRCE

HI
GH

RID
GE TRL

MOUNTAIN VIEW CT

W
O

O
D

S HADOWS RD

ROCKY MOUNTAIN TRL

INDIAN
 TRAIL DR

LA
MBRUSCO

DR

PORT DR

MCGINNIS CT

CHA
BL

IS
DR

M
O

UNTAIN
VIEW

DR

CHARDONNAY DR
SUTTON PLACE TRL

PU
EB

LO
 T

RC
E

WACO TRCE

YUMA TRL

Z22-13

1517 Waco Trace

Existing Land Use
Low Density Residential
Medium Density Residential

Existing Land Use

0 200 400 600 800100
Feet

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VII.2.

Page 33 of 186



15
12

1602

1604

1609

1600

15
08

15
16

1601

1517
1510

16031513

1602

1521

15
09 1001

1503

15
20

1607

15
11

15
14

15
12

15
04

1519

1005

1605

15
16

15
17

15
21

1606

10111101

15
14

15
13

1009

1523
15

10
15

15

15
19

1907

1905

1907

1513

1100

1501
1006

1515

1003

1511

15
02

1502

15
15 1007

15
181511

1509

1908

15
06

15
07

1108
1106

15
05

15
06

1803

1501

1904
1103

1517

1107

15
18

1800

1204

1105

1506

1109

1106

1504

15
10

1811

15
05

1109

15
12

15
07

1503

1103
1102

1518

1202

1509

1503

1802

10031101

1510

1505

15
20

821

905

1503

1809

1805

1804

15
09

1411

1002

903

1003

1102

1800

1806

1502

1500

1801

15
04

15
14

1102

1110

1805

1903

1107

1402

1900

1504

15
08

1801

1413

1904

1903

15
10

1804

1701

1007

901

10011500

15
00

1807

16
33

1805

1608

1104

1511

1102

15
08

1108

1507

16
17

1520

1904

16
23

1111

1800

1806

1807

904

1003

1613

1008

1807

1813

1512

903

1903

1910

1909

1912

1903

905906

1005

15
06

1110

900
1916

1911

1501

14
09

14
10

1503

1004
1006

1902

1508

1901

1614

806

1004

1902

15
16

1506

902

1912

1804 1913

1210

1505

1509

1801

16
10

1001

1511

1915

16
18

17
03

1002

1611

1611

1512

1206

1101

1104

1510

900

1802

1906

1001

1901
1917

16
29

17
04

1807

1502

1505

1103

1522

16
25

1207

16
31

1501

1614

1214

1515

1509

1514

1516
1603

1513

1517

1608

1100

1905

1910

1201

8081802

16
12

1913

1905

<N
UL

L>

1601

1600

1906

<NULL>

902

1908

<NULL>

1805

20
00

810

1914

1911

1200

16
08

1601

1907

1520

1607

16
16

<N
U

LL>

1511

1509

16
141602

16
27

1808

1810

1902

1516

1814

1502

1609

1804

1900

1519

1605
1513

1901

1802

100

101

16
19

1208

1521

1513

16
06

16101400

16
2116

15

1209

907

1415

1412

1105

1803

180317
00

17
02

1613

1901

<NULL>
807

1515

1518 <NULL>

1812

1507

1904

1907

1515

1518

1509

1507

1511

1505

1501

1503
<NULL>

1525

1521

1523

1508

1600

<NULL>

<NULL>

1900

1511

<NULL>

<NULL>

<NULL>

OSAGE TRCE

SI
LV

ER
CR

EE
K

DR

CEDAR OAKS LN

M
EG

AN
 C

T

SPIC
EWOOD

CIR

O
A

K
TI

M
BE

R
S 

CI
R

AZTEC TR
CE

ZINFANDEL DR

EN
D 

O
 T

RA
IL

ROCKYRIDGE TRL

DAKO
TA TRCE

HI
GH

RID
GE TRL

MOUNTAIN VIEW CT

W
O

O
D

S HADOWS RD

ROCKY MOUNTAIN TRL

INDIAN
 TRAIL DR

LA
MBRUSCO

DR

PORT DR

MCGINNIS CT

CHA
BL

IS
DR

M
O

UNTAIN
VIEW

DR

CHARDONNAY DR
SUTTON PLACE TRL

PU
EB

LO
 T

RC
E

WACO TRCE

YUMA TRL

Z22-13

1517 Waco Trace

Land Use Plan
Low Density Residential
Medium Density Residential

Land Use Plan

0 200 400 600 800100
Feet

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VII.2.

Page 34 of 186



1105

1100

1511

1713

1523

20
00

1508

71
1

817

1111

1708

1517 1712

1607

16
07

1904
18

02 900

1200

15
14

16
15

16
18

1216

1102

1914
<NULL>

1610

1912

1522

15
1415

08

2011

18
07 1102

2007

1502

15
18

15
10

1515

808
1510

1512

15
09

806

100

1922

1601

15
08

1904

1518

1104

1204
1202

1513

15
03

15
17

2006

1901

1906

904

1518

892

1601

15
11

1103

1802

1519

2000

1101
16

10

16
17

15
16

16
29

1803

19
01 20
05

15
11

16
25

1509

18
04

1609

2007

16
24

16
01

1507

1900

12
19

1917

1803

16
27

16
13

1502

12
07

1609

1002

16
25

1501

1006

1408

2019

1005

18
09

1814

19
00

1703

1221

1503

1510

1601

1715

1603

900

1913

18
04

1003

1907
1606

17
01

1912

800

16
16

1719

1108

15
02

2010

1928

99999

1905

1514

1001

1605

1206

820

12
17

808

1523
1524

813

1805

1903

1905

1502

15
16

902

1915

15
04

1901

1600

1005

16
11

18
10

902

1807

1509

1913

1515

821

<NULL>

16
33 <NULL>

1904

1504

2009

1106

1706

1512

1517

1903

806

1920

1219

1102

1203

1207

1905

1001

2006

13
031908

1415

1908
16

23

18
06

16
11

1505

20
03

13
05

17
02

16
26

1505

1699

803

2013

1707

896

1605

15
06

714

1907

1510

2017

1208

1103

17
03

713

16
20

1900

20
04

1605

16
22

1004

901

1601

1604

808815

15
09

15
05

1509

2006

15
07

1608

1916

1907

1515

18
01

15
16

1926
16

17

905

1924

1209

18
03

1525 1513

1806

1513

16
14

1511

15
21

714

710

20
02

<NULL>

101

<NULL>

1904

1801

906

1515

1003

1600

15
13

1505

1517

<NULL>

1700

1906

1813

1602

1518

1509

102
1915

1917

1609

808

1520

1910

818

712

16
21

1107

1608

19021011

804

1914

1507

894

1717

1505

18
02

15
15

1516

1701

1001

1612

104

1507
1614

1101

810

2003

16
12

1109

1803

<NULL>

1518

1007

19
03

1503

822

1918

1206

1205

16
08

1910

20
01

15
06

1800

1602

12
13

1103

16
09

1802

16
13

1907

1600

809

18
07

1912

18
00

1107

1100

16
13

1601

15
20

1004

1716

1909

2000

2021

18
02

1603

16
31

1711

15
10

2001

803

1520

15
07

18041906

903

1911

20
04

1901

1002

1003

1902

15
12

2002

1800

807

1710

1608

1101

1007

15
18

1109

1202

1003

1805

1904

16
07

15
1215

08

1605

17
04

1105

1901

1709

15
00

2015

801

1905

1903

805

1911

15
13

1600

13
01

1602

1511

16
19

15
23

1511 1509

1614

12
15

1602

1801

18
05

1902

1603

18
08

1919

1911

1519 1602

1915

810

8021507

1611

15
17

1903

1910

1503 807

805

1001 18
07

819

1913

15
19

1102

16
21

1908

802

1900

1521

1218

19
14

1501
2008

1714

15
14

1812

2007

18
06

1902

12
10

1800

1201907

1930

105

15
15

1607

1521

15
09

20
02

1006

18
05

1110

16
15

2008

800

103

1504

905

903

1505

1009

2004

16
06

17
00

1917

1204

1220

2005

16
00

1600

18
11

1008

15
20

1907

1507

1500

1605

1803

1516

1801

18
04

1916
16

23

15
11

16
19

1603

807

1214

1909

CEDAR OAKS LN

OSAGE TRCE

AZTEC TR
CE

INDIAN
 TRAIL DR

SI
LV

ER
 C

RE
EK

 D
R

SPIC
EWOOD

CIR

O
A

K
TI

M
BE

R
S 

CI
R

ZINFANDEL DR

EN
D

O
TR

AI

L

PIMA TRL

LO
VE

 C
T

HIGH RIDGE TRL

MOUNTAIN
VIEW CT

W
O

O
D

S

HADOWS RD

ROCKY MOUNTAIN T RL

PORT DR MAJESTIC VIEW CT

JA
SO

N
 D

R

PU
EB

LO
TR

CE

THERESA CIR

ROCKY RIDGE TRL

LAM
BR

US
CO

DR

MCGINNIS CT

ROSE CIR
CHAB

LI
S

DR

M
OUNTAIN

VIEW
DR

CHARDONNAY DR

DE
ER

FI
EL

D
W

AY

WILD RIDGE DR

SUTTON
PLACE

TRL

CEDAR RIDGE

IR
O

N 
JA

CK
ET

 T
RL

PIMA TRL

W
AC

O
TR

CE

W
AR

R
IO

RS
 P

AT
H 

RD

YUMA TRL

Z22-13

1517 Waco Trace

200 Foot Buffer

400 Foot Buffer

200 Foot Notified Properties (22)

Recommend Denial (56)
Outside 400' Buffer
Within 400' Buffer
Recommend Approval (4)

400 Foot Notified Properties (59)

Notification

0 240 480 720 960120
Feet

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VII.2.

Page 35 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 36 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 37 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 38 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 39 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 40 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 41 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 42 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 43 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 44 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 45 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 46 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 47 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 48 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 49 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 50 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 51 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 52 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 53 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 54 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 55 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 56 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 57 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 58 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 59 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 60 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 61 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 62 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 63 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 64 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 65 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 66 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 67 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 68 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 69 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 70 of 186



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF  THE  CITY  OF  HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS GRANTING 
R-1 (M) (ONE-FAMILY MANUFACTURED HOME DWELLING DISTRICT) ON 
A PORTION OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS MCLAUGHLIN WAY, 
BLOCK 001, LOT 0001, ACRES 4.46, GENERALLY LOCATED AT 1517 WACO 
TRACE, HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS DISPLAYED IN 
EXHIBIT A. 

WHEREAS, the City Council (“Council”) of the City of Harker Heights (“City”) finds 
that after due notice and public hearings as required by law, and after consideration of the 
recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, it is necessary and desirable to 
amend the Code of Harker Heights (“Code”) as hereinafter provided; and 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public, and 
notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law, all in 
strict accordance with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1: The Council officially finds and declares that the facts and recitations set 
forth in the preamble to this Ordinance are true and correct. 

SECTION 2: The hereinafter-described property, as previously zoned R-1 (One-Family 
Dwelling District) to R-1 (M) (One-Family Manufactured Home Dwelling District) on a 
portion of the property generally located at 1517 Waco Trace, Harker Heights, Bell County, 
Texas, as displayed in Exhibit A. 

SECTION 3: Table VII, Table of Special Ordinances, of the Code is hereby supplemented 
by adding the following entry: 

 
Ord. No.  Date Passed   Description 
    
2022-   6/14/2022 Granting R-1 (M) (One-Family 

Manufactured Home Dwelling 
District) on a portion of the property 
generally located at 1517 Waco Trace, 
Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, as 
displayed in Exhibit A 

 
 

SECTION 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall be effective from and after its passage, and the City 
Clerk shall publish the caption or title of hereof within ten days as required by law. 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 71 of 186



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Harker Heights on June 
14, 2022. 

 
 
 

  
Spencer H. Smith, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Juliette Helsham, City Secretary 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.2.

Page 72 of 186



City Council Memorandum

FROM: The Office of the City Manager DATE: June 14, 2022

CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AN 
ORDINANCE TO CHANGE ZONING DESIGNATION FROM R-1 (ONE-FAMILY DWELLING 
DISTRICT) TO R-1 (ONE-FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT) WITH A CONDITIONAL USE 
PERMIT (CUP) TO ALLOW FOR A PET GROOMING BUSINESS TO OPERATE AS A 
HOME OCCUPATION ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS HIGHLAND OAKS ESTATES 
SECTION 1, BLOCK 00F, LOT 14, PT 15, (W 1/2 OF 15), ACRES 0.441, GENERALLY 
LOCATED AT 100 E. WOODLAWN DRIVE, HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, 
AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION. (PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR)

EXPLANATION:
The applicant is requesting to operate a pet grooming business as a Home Occupation at 
property generally located at 100 E. Woodlawn Drive.

Parcel History
This area was platted in 1962 as part of the Highland Oaks Estates Section 1 Subdivision. The 
parcel was then annexed into the city limits in 1963.  According to records on Bell County 
Appraisal District website, the residential structure was constructed in 1977 and consists of 
approximately 2,782 square feet. The size of the lot is approximately 0.441 acres.

STAFF ANALYSIS:
Surrounding Land Uses
Adjacent land uses include those identified in the table below.

 
The 2021 Land Use Plan identifies this area being designated for Low Density Residential use. 
The proposed Conditional Use Permit with its intended use will likely have an adverse impact 
on the neighborhood and is not consistent with the 2021 updates to the City of Harker Heights 
Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Plan.
 
Thoroughfare Plan
Woodlawn Rd. is classified as a residential street in the Mobility 2030 Thoroughfare Plan. Per 
§154.01 of the City’s code of ordinances, Residential Streets are defined as: “Streets that 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 73 of 186



serve individual residential lots. They carry low traffic volumes at low speeds. RESIDENTIAL 
STREETS shall be 36 feet in width back-of-curb to back-of-curb with a minimum 60 feet of 
right-of-way. These are streets that serve individual residential lots”. 
 
On May 23, 2022, the applicant provided additional business plan details. According to 
§155.084, as cited below, a Home Occupation shall not allow for the increase in vehicular or 
pedestrian traffic, noise, odor, or commercial equipment.
 
    § 155.084 HOME OCCUPATIONS.
    (A)   Definition. A HOME OCCUPATION is an incidental use of a dwelling unit (not                            
accessory structure) for gainful employment, involving the provision of limited goods
            and/or services.
        (1)   Persons conducting a home occupation are required to comply with, and are subject
                to, any other laws, rules and regulations affecting the occupation and the property.
        (2)   Home occupations are permitted incidental uses only so long as all the following
               conditions are observed:
                …
                (e)   The use shall not increase vehicular or pedestrian traffic flow beyond what
                        normally occurs in the applicable zoning district. Additionally, except as
                        provided in division (g), there shall be no more than two additional cars parked
                        on the premises or adjacent to it for non-residents, including clients
                        and employees. Parking shall not be permitted in the front or side yards,
                        unless paved according to city standards;
                …
                (g)   One commercial vehicle, not for advertising, having a capacity of one ton or
                        less (excluding attached trailers), may be used or parked on appropriate
                        pavement on the property in connection with the home occupation;
 
                (h)   No mechanical or electrical equipment shall be employed other than the quality
                        and quantity of machinery or equipment customarily found in a home
                        associated with a hobby or avocation not conducted for gain or profit; and
 
                (i)   The home occupation use shall not generate noise, vibration, glare, fumes,
                       odors, or electrical interference beyond what normally occurs in the applicable
                       zoning district.
 
Flood Damage Prevention
No portion of this property lies within the 100 year or 500-year flood hazard areas.
 
City Utilities
The City’s water and wastewater infrastructure in this neighborhood are designed for 
residential use and loadings. The nature of the proposed Home Occupation could result in the 
discharge of a commercial level of animal fur/hair into the sanitary sewer system, which is 
expressly prohibited per the referenced code below (§53.27). 
 
    § 53.27 IMPAIRMENT OF FACILITIES.
    (A)   No person may discharge into public sewers any substance that can be reasonably
            expected to cause:
            (1)   Obstruction to the flow in sewers;

AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 74 of 186



            (2)   Interference with the operation of treatment processes of facilities; or
            (3)   Excessive loading of treatment facilities.
    …
    (F)   No person may discharge into public sewers solid or viscous substances which may
            violate division (A) of this section if present in sufficient quantity or size, including, but
            not limited to:
             …
            (9)   Feathers;
            …
            (17)   Hair and fleshings;
             …
             (21)   Chemical residues;
              …
 
Pharr vs. Tippett Considerations

1. The proposed commercial use and rezoning are not compatible with the current 
Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Plan.

2. The proposed use and rezoning will likely have an adverse impact on surrounding 
properties.

3. The proposed use and rezoning are not compatible with existing uses and zoning in the 
neighborhood. 

4. The proposed use and rezoning will likely pose an adverse impact to the public health, 
safety, or general welfare. 

 
 
NOTICES:
Based on the most recently approved tax roll available, staff sent out forty-six (46) notices to 
property owners within the 400-foot notification area. As of June 7, 2022, two (2) responses 
were received in favor of the request, and nine (9) responses were received in opposition of 
the request. Any additional responses received after the above date will be provided during the 
meeting.
 
One (1) of the responses in opposition is located on a parcel located completely within the 
200-foot notification area, and three (3) of the responses in opposition are for parcels located 
partially within the 200-foot notification area. 
 
Total area of land within the 200-foot notification area is: ~234,242 sq. ft. 
Total area of land within the 200-foot notification area recommending denial is: ~33,830 sq. Ft. 
Percentage of land area recommending denial: 14%
 
Per Texas Local Government Code Section 211.006, opposition that is written and signed by 
the owners of at least 20% of the area of the lots within the 200-foot buffer requires a super 
majority vote for approval. Note that when 20% of the number of landowners within the 200 
foot buffer have provided written and signed opposition, there is not a requirement of Texas 
Local Government Code nor the City’s Code of Ordinances for a super majority vote by the 
Planning & Zoning Commission.

RECOMMENDATION:
Alternatives Considered

AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 75 of 186



Staff considered two (2) alternatives for this case.
1. Recommend approval of the applicant’s zoning request as presented.
2. Recommend disapproval of the applicants zoning request.

 
Staff Recommendation
Staff recommended disapproval to the Planning & Zoning Commission of an ordinance to 
change zoning designation from R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) to R-1 (One-Family 
Dwelling District) with a Conditional use Permit (CUP) to allow for a pet grooming business to 
operate as a Home Occupation for the property in this case.
 
 
ACTION TAKEN BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION:
During the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting held on May 25, 2022, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission voted (6-1) to recommend disapproval of an ordinance to grant a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for a pet grooming business to operate as a Home 
Occupation on property described as Highland Oaks Estates Section 1, Block 00F, Lot 14, PT 
15, (W 1/2 of 15), Acres 0.441, generally located at 100 E. Woodlawn Drive, Harker Heights, 
Bell County, Texas, based on staff’s recommendation and findings.
 
Additionally, the explanation provided by the Planning & Zoning Commission was that this 
case was recommended for denial based on the proposed zoning not being compatible with 
the existing uses in the neighborhood. 

ACTION BY THE COUNCIL:
Since the recommendation of the property was not approved by the Planning & Zoning 
Commission, per §155.212(D) (2) of the City of Harker Heights Code of Ordinances, a zoning 
district change will require a three-fourths (super-majority) approval vote from the City Council.
 
    (D) Vote Required
    “If such proposed amendment, supplement, or change has not been approved by the 
Planning and Zoning   Commission, the amendment, supplement or change shall not become 
effective except by a three-fourths approval vote by the City Council.”
 

1. Motion to approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove with explanation an 
ordinance grant a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for a pet grooming business to 
operate as a Home Occupation on property described as Highland Oaks Estates 
Section 1, Block 00F, Lot 14, PT 15, (W 1/2 of 15), Acres 0.441, generally located at 
100 E. Woodlawn Drive, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, based on staff’s 
recommendation and findings.

2. Any other action deemed necessary.

ATTACHMENTS:
Z22-12_03-PropOrdinance
Z22-12_02-Attachments
Applicant_Response_05232022

AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 76 of 186



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF  THE  CITY  OF  HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS GRANTING 
A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW FOR A PET GROOMING 
BUSINESS TO OPERATE AS A HOME OCCUPATION ON PROPERTY 
DESCRIBED AS HIGHLAND OAKS ESTATES SECTION 1, BLOCK 00F, LOT 14, 
PT 15, (W 1/2 OF 15), ACRES 0.441, GENERALLY LOCATED AT 100 E. 
WOODLAWN DRIVE, HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS. 

WHEREAS, the City Council (“Council”) of the City of Harker Heights (“City”) finds 
that after due notice and public hearings as required by law, and after consideration of the 
recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, it is necessary and desirable to 
amend the Code of Harker Heights (“Code”) as hereinafter provided; and 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public, and 
notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law, all in 
strict accordance with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1: The Council officially finds and declares that the facts and recitations set 
forth in the preamble to this Ordinance are true and correct. 

SECTION 2: The hereinafter-described property, as previously zoned R-1 (One-Family 
Dwelling District) to R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) with a CUP (Conditional Use 
Permit) for a pet grooming business to operate as a Home Occupation on property described 
as Highland Oaks Estates Section 1, Block 00F, Lot 14, PT 15, (W 1/2 of 15), Acres 0.441, 
generally located at 100 E. Woodlawn Drive, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas. 

 

SECTION 3: Table VII, Table of Special Ordinances, of the Code is hereby supplemented 
by adding the following entry: 

 
 
 
 
Ord. No.  Date Passed   Description 
    
2022-   6/14/2022 Granting R-1 zoning with a CUP 

(Conditional Use Permit) for a pet 
grooming business to operate as a 
Home Occupation on property 
described as Highland Oaks Estates 
Section 1, Block 00F, Lot 14, PT 15, (W 
1/2 of 15), Acres 0.441, generally 
located at 100 E. Woodlawn Drive, 
Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 77 of 186



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 

SECTION 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall be effective from and after its passage, and the City 
Clerk shall publish the caption or title of hereof within ten days as required by law. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Harker Heights on June 
14, 2022. 

 
 
 

  
Spencer H. Smith, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Juliette Helsham, City Secretary 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 78 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 79 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 80 of 186



§ 53.27  IMPAIRMENT OF FACILITIES.

   (A)   No person may discharge into public sewers any substance that can be reasonably expected to cause:

      (1)   Obstruction to the flow in sewers;

      (2)   Interference with the operation of treatment processes of facilities; or

      (3)   Excessive loading of treatment facilities.

   (B)   Discharges prohibited by division (A) of this section include, but are not limited to, materials which exert or cause
concentrations of:

      (1)   Inert suspended solids greater than 250 mg/l including but not limited to:

         (a)   Fuller’s earth;

         (b)   Lime slurries; and

         (c)   Lime residues;

      (2)   Dissolved solids greater than 1,000 mg/l including but not limited to:

         (a)   Sodium chloride; and

         (b)   Sodium sulfate;

      (3)   Excessive discoloration including but not limited to:

         (a)   Dye wastes;

         (b)   Vegetable tanning solutions; or

      (4)   BOD, COD, or chlorine demand in excess of normal plant capacity.

   (C)   No person may discharge into public sewers any substance that may be reasonably expected to:

      (1)   Deposit grease or oil in the sewer lines in such a manner as to clog the sewers;

      (2)   Overload skimming and grease handling equipment;

      (3)   Pass to the receiving waters without being effectively treated by normal wastewater treatment processes due to the
non-amenability of the substance to bacterial action; or

      (4)   Deleteriously affect the treatment processes due to excessive quantities.

   (D)   No person may discharge any substance into public sewers which:

      (1)   Is not amenable to treatment or reduction by the processes and facilities employed; or

      (2)   Is amenable to treatment only to such a degree that the treatment plant effluent cannot meet the requirements of
other agencies having jurisdiction over discharge to the receiving waters.

   (E)   The approving authority shall regulate the flow and concentration of slugs when they may:

      (1)   Impair the treatment process;

      (2)   Cause damage to collection facilities;

      (3)   Incur treatment costs exceeding those tor normal wastewater; or

      (4)   Render the effluent unfit for stream disposal or industrial use.

   (F)   No person may discharge into public sewers solid or viscous substances which may violate division (A) of this section
if present in sufficient quantity or size, including, but not limited to:

      (1)   Ashes;

      (2)   Cinders;

      (3)   Sand;

      (4)   Mud;

      (5)   Straw;

      (6)   Shavings;

      (7)   Metal;

      (8)   Glass;

AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 81 of 186



      (9)   Rags;

      (10)   Feathers;

      (11)   Tar;

      (12)   Plastics;

      (13)   Wood;

      (14)   Unground garbage;

      (15)   Whole blood;

      (16)   Paunch manure;

      (17)   Hair and fleshings;

      (18)   Entrails;

      (19)   Paper products, either whole or ground by garbage grinders;

      (20)   Slops;

      (21)   Chemical residues;

      (22)   Paint residues; or

      (23)   Bulk solids.

(Ord. 2011-01, passed 1-25-11)  Penalty, see § 53.99

AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 82 of 186



HOME OCCUPATIONS
§ 155.084  HOME OCCUPATIONS.

   (A)   Definition. A HOME OCCUPATION is an incidental use of a dwelling unit (not an accessory structure) for gainful
employment, involving the provision of limited goods and/or services.

      (1)   Persons conducting a home occupation are required to comply with, and are subject to, any other laws, rules and
regulations affecting the occupation and the property.

      (2)   Home occupations are permitted incidental uses only so long as all the following conditions are observed:

         (a)   The Texas tax identification number must be provided with the application.

         (b)   A sign not larger than 324 square inches (e.g., 18 inches by 18 inches) affixed to the wall or door is permitted.
The home occupation shall not involve the use of advertising signs or window displays on the premises or any other local
advertising media which call attention to the fact that the home is being used for business purposes; except that, for such
purposes, a telephone number, but no business address, may be published.

         (c)   In no way shall the outside appearance of the dwelling be altered from its residential character;

         (d)   Performance of the occupation activity shall not be visible from the street (curtains or blinds may be used to
accomplish this purpose);

         (e)   The use shall not increase vehicular or pedestrian traffic flow beyond what normally occurs in the applicable
zoning district. Additionally, except as provided in division (g), there shall be no more than two  additional cars parked on the
premises or adjacent to it for non-residents, including clients and employees. Parking shall not be permitted in the front or
side yards, unless paved according to city standards;

         (f)   There shall be no outside storage (to include trailers) or display related to the home occupation;

         (g)   One commercial vehicle, not for advertising, having a capacity of one  ton or less (excluding attached trailers),
may be used or parked on appropriate pavement on the property in connection with the home occupation;

         (h)   No mechanical or electrical equipment shall be employed other than the quality and quantity of machinery or
equipment customarily found in a home associated with a hobby or avocation not conducted for gain or profit; and

         (i)   The home occupation use shall not generate noise, vibration, glare, fumes, odors, or electrical interference beyond
what normally occurs in the applicable zoning district.

   (B)   Occupations included.  Home occupations may include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following:

      (1)   Office facility of an accountant, architect, attorney, engineer, consultant, insurance agent, real estate broker or
member of similar professions;

      (2)   Author, artist or sculptor, photographer;

      (3)   Dressmaker, seamstress or tailor;

      (4)   Music/dance teacher or other type of instruction;

      (5)   Individual tutoring;

      (6)   Home crafts such as rug weaving, model making;

      (7)   Office facility of a salesman, sales representative, manufacturer's representative, or service provider, for sale of
goods or services, whether such individual or individuals are self-employed or otherwise; and provided that no retail or
wholesale transactions or provision of services are made on the premises;

      (8)   Repair shops for small electrical appliances (such as irons, portable fans and the like), typewriters, cameras and
other similar small items; provided the item does not have an internal combustion engine;

      (9)   Food preparation establishments such as cake maker, provided there is compliance with all state health laws and no
consumption of food items by customers on the premises;

      (10)   Personal grooming with one customer at a time, by appointment only.

   (C)   Occupations not included.  Permitted home occupations shall not in any event be deemed to include:

      (1)   Animal hospitals or clinics, commercial stables or commercial kennels;

      (2)   Restaurants;

      (3)   Automobile, boat or trailer paint or repair shops (major or minor);

      (4)   Doctor, dentist, veterinarian, sex therapy, massage therapy or other medically related offices;

      (5)   On-premise retail sales, except garage sales as otherwise provided in this code:

AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 83 of 186



      (6)   Mortuaries;

      (7)   Private clubs;

      (8)   Trailer rentals;

      (9)   Carpentry work;

      (10)   Photo developing using chemicals;

      (11)   Gift shops;

      (12)   Repair shops for any item with an internal combustion engine; and

      (13)   Those home occupation uses which, without regard to principal or accessory use conditions, would be classified as
assembly, factory-industrial, hazardous, institutional or mercantile occupancies as defined by the 1988 Standard Building
Code, as amended.

   (D)   Application of provisions.  The provisions of this section shall apply to all home occupations, regardless of the date of
inception, unless previously authorized in writing by the city.

   (E)   Home occupations not listed in this section.

      (1)   Persons wishing to operate home occupations which are not expressly permitted or prohibited by this section may
make written request to the Planning and Development Director for a formal review of the proposed home occupation.

      (2)   The Planning and Development Director shall review the request to determine the appropriateness within the
established general guidelines. If the Director makes a favorable determination, the request shall be forwarded to the
Planning and Zoning Commission for hearing.

      (3)   The Planning and Zoning Commission shall, in accordance with applicable law, review all requests forwarded by the
Director, and submit a final report and recommendation to the City Council.

      (4)   The City Council shall then, in accordance with applicable law, review and consider action on the request.

      (5)   Any person requesting a formal review to permit a particular use not otherwise permitted shall, at the time such
request is submitted, pay a non-refundable fee established by the City Council.

   (F)   License revocation.  Home occupations are subject to review by the city, should violations be reported or observed.
Licenses shall be revoked for noncompliance.

(Ord. 2006-40, passed 10-24-06)

AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 84 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 85 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 86 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 87 of 186



207

102

112

207

204

202

200

603

604

<NULL>

<NULL>

104

511

206

601

602

608

208

108

103

20
6

305

203

202

212

212
209

206

204

105

208

310

209

104

211

107

605

604

108

107212

210

203

210

103

515

207

103

203

212

202

208

205

307

205

103

302

204

20
9

307

209

216

401

114
201

303

215

201

513

603

110

105

607

600

201

202

609

213

308

101

205

517

305

306

106

207

606

603

510

211

825

106

204

309

30421
1

213

302

101

103

204

206
206

203

403

208

306

206

104

201

106

512

210

303

309

108

202

111

301

302

213

303

201

110

107

214

104

101

102

102

215

204

305

105

207

204

218

<NULL>

110106

100

101

203

W KNIGHTS WAY

PIN
OA

K
DR

SP
AN

IS
H

O
AK

S
DR

CAGLE LN

S ROY REYNOLDS DR

EV
ER

G
R

EE
N 

DR

WHITE OAK LN

W BRIARWOOD LN

E WOODLAWN DR

HI
G

HL
AN

D
O

AK
S

DR

PERSIM
M

O
N

CIR

OAKMONT CIR

W WOODLAWN DR

E BRIARWOOD LN

LI
VE

 O
A

K
 D

R

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

Z22-12

100 E. Woodlawn Dr.

Location

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VII.3.

Page 88 of 186



207

102

112

207

204

202

200

603

604

<NULL>

<NULL>

104

511

206

601

602

608

208

108

103

20
6

305

203

202

212

212
209

206

204

105

208

310

209

104

211

107

605

604

108

107212

210

203

210

103

515

207

103

203

212

202

208

205

307

205

103

302

204

20
9

307

209

216

401

114
201

303

215

201

513

603

110

105

607

600

201

202

609

213

308

101

205

517

305

306

106

207

606

603

510

211

825

106

204

309

30421
1

213

302

101

103

204

206
206

203

403

208

306

206

104

201

106

512

210

303

309

108

202

111

301

302

213

303

201

110

107

214

104

101

102

102

215

204

305

105

207

204

218

<NULL>

110106

100

101

203

W KNIGHTS WAY

PIN
OA

K
DR

SP
AN

IS
H

O
AK

S
DR

CAGLE LN

S ROY REYNOLDS DR

EV
ER

G
R

EE
N 

DR

WHITE OAK LN

W BRIARWOOD LN

E WOODLAWN DR

HI
G

HL
AN

D
O

AK
S

DR

PERSIM
M

O
N

CIR

OAKMONT CIR

W WOODLAWN DR

E BRIARWOOD LN

LI
VE

 O
A

K
 D

R

Z22-12

100 E. Woodlawn Dr.

Zoning Districts
B-4 Secondary and Highway Business District

R-1 One-Family Dwelling District

Zoning

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VII.3.

Page 89 of 186



207

102

112

207

204

202

200

603

604

<NULL>

<NULL>

104

511

206

601

602

608

208

108

103

20
6

305

203

202

212

212
209

206

204

105

208

310

209

104

211

107

605

604

108

107212

210

203

210

103

515

207

103

203

212

202

208

205

307

205

103

302

204

20
9

307

209

216

401

114
201

303

215

201

513

603

110

105

607

600

201

202

609

213

308

101

205

517

305

306

106

207

606

603

510

211

825

106

204

309

30421
1

213

302

101

103

204

206
206

203

403

208

306

206

104

201

106

512

210

303

309

108

202

111

301

302

213

303

201

110

107

214

104

101

102

102

215

204

305

105

207

204

218

<NULL>

110106

100

101

203

W KNIGHTS WAY

PIN
OA

K
DR

SP
AN

IS
H

O
AK

S
DR

CAGLE LN

S ROY REYNOLDS DR

EV
ER

G
R

EE
N 

DR

WHITE OAK LN

W BRIARWOOD LN

E WOODLAWN DR

HI
G

HL
AN

D
O

AK
S

DR

PERSIM
M

O
N

CIR

OAKMONT CIR

W WOODLAWN DR

E BRIARWOOD LN

LI
VE

 O
A

K
 D

R

Z22-12

100 E. Woodlawn Dr.

Existing Land Use
Low Density Residential
Regional Center

Existing Land Use

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VII.3.

Page 90 of 186



207

102

112

207

204

202

200

603

604

<NULL>

<NULL>

104

511

206

601

602

608

208

108

103

20
6

305

203

202

212

212
209

206

204

105

208

310

209

104

211

107

605

604

108

107212

210

203

210

103

515

207

103

203

212

202

208

205

307

205

103

302

204

20
9

307

209

216

401

114
201

303

215

201

513

603

110

105

607

600

201

202

609

213

308

101

205

517

305

306

106

207

606

603

510

211

825

106

204

309

30421
1

213

302

101

103

204

206
206

203

403

208

306

206

104

201

106

512

210

303

309

108

202

111

301

302

213

303

201

110

107

214

104

101

102

102

215

204

305

105

207

204

218

<NULL>

110106

100

101

203

W KNIGHTS WAY

PIN
OA

K
DR

SP
AN

IS
H

O
AK

S
DR

CAGLE LN

S ROY REYNOLDS DR

EV
ER

G
R

EE
N 

DR

WHITE OAK LN

W BRIARWOOD LN

E WOODLAWN DR

HI
G

HL
AN

D
O

AK
S

DR

PERSIM
M

O
N

CIR

OAKMONT CIR

W WOODLAWN DR

E BRIARWOOD LN

LI
VE

 O
A

K
 D

R

Z22-12

100 E. Woodlawn Dr.

Land Use Plan
Low Density Residential
Regional Center
Community Center

Land Use Plan

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VII.3.

Page 91 of 186



<NULL>

201

107

211

213

208

305

825

201

112

102

101

401

103

303

110

103

605

205

209

201

603

20
9

600

106

213

204

201

302

203

21
1

203

211

111

<NULL>

206

207

303

512

105

305

204

305

204

604

207

104

203

108

309

309

208

106

609

606

<NULL>

215

603

210

301

218

209

601

604

202
203

306

202114

207

202

608
103

307

208

106

104

202

108

212

108

104

207

302

201

302

212

307

101

205

103

403

206

513

110

204

205

204

110

104

306

304

215

206

210

209

207

101 202

602

100

511

213

102

303

206

603

212

200

210

214

106

204

20
6

101

105

105
203

510

212

107

107

310

308

515

102

208

103

216

607

517

206

204

W KNIGHTS WAY

PIN
OA

K
DR

SP
AN

IS
H

O
AK

S
DR

CAGLE LN

S ROY REYNOLDS DR

EV
ER

G
R

EE
N 

DR

WHITE OAK LN

W BRIARWOOD LN

E WOODLAWN DR

HI
G

HL
AN

D
O

AK
S

DR

PERSIM
M

O
N

CIR

OAKMONT CIR

W WOODLAWN DR

E BRIARWOOD LN

LI
VE

 O
A

K
 D

R

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

Z22-12

100 E. Woodlawn Dr.

200 Foot Buffer

400 Foot Buffer

Recommend Denial (9)

Recommend Approval (2)

200 Foot Notified Properties (16)

400 Foot Notified Properties (45)

Notification

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VII.3.

Page 92 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 93 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 94 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 95 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 96 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 97 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 98 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 99 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 100 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 101 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 102 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 103 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 104 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 105 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 106 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 107 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 108 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 109 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 110 of 186



1

Yvonne Spell

From: compinche21 <compinche21@yahoo.com>
Sent: Monday, May 23, 2022 4:50 PM
To: Yvonne Spell
Subject: RE: Automatic reply: FW: Sylvia Acevedo pet grooming case

Hello Yvonne! 
 
It was nice talking to you. Here is the information and pictures we talked about. 
 
First picture is a vent to access to pipe of the drain in case of clogging.  
Second, third and fourth pictures are the two grid drainage in the dog shower area. These are to trap any loose fur from 
the dog and prevent clogging the pipes. 
Fith picture is the label of the type of shampoo that will be use on these services. They are to be diluted in water and 
wony harm people, animal and are environment friendly.  
 
Normally a maximum of 3 dogs will be service a day. These will be schedule one dog per appointment (9am, 1pm and 
5pm). The length of the service will depend on how much will the dog collaborate with me. I seek to provide high quality 
service oppose to high production. I offer 10 minutes "know each other" time, bath, massage while bathtime, nail trim, 
ear cleaning,  teeth cleaning, blow dry, style.  
 
It is important to inform that all loose fur and clipping will be dispose on trash bag and on personal trash cans since is a 
small amount of fur. 
 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 111 of 186



2

 

 
 
Sent via the Samsung Galaxy Note20 Ultra 5G, an AT&T 5G smartphone 

 
 
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ Original message ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Yvonne Spell <yspell@harkerheights.gov>  
Date: 5/20/22 4:43 PM (GMT‐06:00)  

AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 112 of 186



3

To: compinche21 <compinche21@yahoo.com>  
Subject: Automatic reply: FW: Sylvia Acevedo pet grooming case  
 

I will be out of the office on Friday, May 20, 2022. For any questions, please email 
planning@harkerheights.gov or call 254-953-5648. 

  

AGENDA ITEM #VII.3.

Page 113 of 186



City Council Memorandum

FROM: The Office of the City Manager DATE: June 14, 2022

CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AN 
ORDINANCE TO CHANGE ZONING DESIGNATION FROM R-3 (MULTI-FAMILY 

ON DISTRICT) DWELLING INFILL (TWO-FAMILY R2-I TO DISTRICT) DWELLING 
PROPERTIES DESCRIBED AS MEADOW ACRES, BLOCK 005, LOT PT 2, (E 1/2 OF 2), 
GENERALLY LOCATED AT 214 W. BOB WHITE LANE, HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL 
COUNTY, TEXAS, AND MEADOW ACRES, BLOCK 005, LOT PT 2 (W 1/2 OF 2), 
GENERALLY LOCATED AT 216 W. BOB WHITE LANE, HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL 
COUNTY, TEXAS, AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION. (PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR)

EXPLANATION:
The applicant is requesting a change from the current zoning of R-3 (Multi-Family Dwelling 
District) to R2-I (Two-Family Infill Dwelling District) on properties generally located at 214 & 
216 W. Bob White Lane.  

Parcel History
This parcel is located within the original area of the city incorporation (1960), as part of the 
Meadow Acres Subdivision.
 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS:
Surrounding Land Uses
Adjacent land uses include those identified in the table below.
 

 
The 2021 Land Use Plan identifies this area being designated for Low Density Residential use. 
The proposed rezoning with its intended use will not likely have any adverse impact on the 
neighborhood and is consistent with the 2021 updates to the City of Harker Heights 
Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Plan.
 
Thoroughfare Plan
The 2021 Land Use Plan identifies this area being designated for Low Density Residential use. 
The proposed rezoning with its intended use will not likely have any adverse impact on the 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.4.

Page 114 of 186



neighborhood and is consistent with the 2021 updates to the City of Harker Heights 
Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Plan.
 
Flood Damage Prevention
No portion of this property lies within the 100 year or 500-year flood hazard areas.
 
Pharr vs. Tippett Considerations

1. The proposed use and rezoning are not compatible with the current Comprehensive 
Plan and Land Use Plan.

2. The proposed use and rezoning will have no adverse impact on surrounding properties. 
3. The proposed use and rezoning are compatible with existing uses and zoning in the 

neighborhood.
4. The proposed use and rezoning do not pose an adverse impact to the public health, 

safety, or general welfare.
 
 
NOTICES:
Based on the most recently approved tax roll available, staff sent out fifty-three (53) notices to 
property owners within the 400-foot notification area. As of June 7, 2022, one (1) response 
was received in favor of the request, and two (2) responses were received in opposition of the 
request. One response was received without a marked recommendation. Any additional 
responses received after the above date will be provided during the meeting.

RECOMMENDATION:
Alternatives Considered
Staff considered three (3) alternatives for this case.

1. Recommend approval of the applicant’s zoning request as presented.
2. Recommend disapproval of the applicants zoning request.
3. Recommend the applicant proceed with a more restrictive zoning classification for this 

parcel.
 
Staff Recommendation
Staff recommended approval to the Planning & Zoning Commission of an ordinance to change 
zoning designation from R-3 (Multi-Family Dwelling District) to R2-I (Two-Family Infill Dwelling 
District) on properties generally located at 214 & 216 W. Bob White Lane.
 
 
ACTION TAKEN BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION:
 
During the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting held on May 25, 2022, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission voted (7-0) to recommend approval of an ordinance to grant R2-I (Two-
Family Infill Dwelling District) on properties generally located at 214 & 216 W. Bob White Lane, 
based on staff’s recommendation and findings.
 

ACTION BY THE COUNCIL:
1. Motion to approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove with explanation an 

ordinance to change zoning designation from R-3 (Multi-Family Dwelling District) to R2-I 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.4.

Page 115 of 186



(Two-Family Infill Dwelling District) on properties described as Meadow Acres, Block 
005, Lot PT 2, (E 1/2 of 2), generally located at 214 W. Bob White Lane, Harker 
Heights, Bell County, Texas, and Meadow Acres, Block 005, Lot PT 2 (W 1/2 of 2), 
generally located at 216 W. Bob White Lane, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, based 
on staff’s recommendation and findings.

2. Any other action deemed necessary.

ATTACHMENTS:
Z22-14_02-Attachments
Z22-14_03-PropOrdinance

AGENDA ITEM #VII.4.

Page 116 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.4.

Page 117 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.4.

Page 118 of 186



203
207

221

202

810

1505

1601

58
07

837

1805

808

811

801

201

807

1705

5829

621

1503

222
226

5827

5835 <N
UL

L>

205

205

5710

5803

1507

223

215

5801

703

201220

212

225

211

5838

815

220

217

205

211

108

218

206

220

203

1605

5711

803

1801

206

210

216

218

813
217

222

202

218

224

217

216

206

206

701

1803

5831

5805

5802

213

809

209

219

213

109

204

104

214

805

225

211

619

123

214

705
5833

203

112

608

714

210

823
221

817

212

819

102

808

208

211

11
1

104

12
0605

209

209

712

219

209

805

106

220

202

219

<NULL>

<NULL>

208

211

214 107

612

212

901

801

207

211

811

815

702

803

210

816

215

726

208

218

1603

1703

1509

224

821

204

226

<N
UL

L>

806

207
205

211 209

813

W ROBIN LN

W BEE LINE LN

S 
RO

Y 
RE

YN
O

LD
S 

DR

HA
RL

EY
 D

R

DOVE LN

W BOB WHITE LN
RO

BE
RT

LE
W

IS

CI
TY

 A
CC

ES
S 

B

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

Z22-14

214 - 216 W. Bob White Lane

Location

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VII.4.

Page 119 of 186



203
207

221

202

810

1505

1601

58
07

837

1805

808

811

801

201

807

1705

5829

621

1503

222
226

5827

5835 <N
UL

L>

205

205

5710

5803

1507

223

215

5801

703

201220

212

225

211

5838

815

220

217

205

211

108

218

206

220

203

1605

5711

803

1801

206

210

216

218

813
217

222

202

218

224

217

216

206

206

701

1803

5831

5805

5802

213

809

209

219

213

109

204

104

214

805

225

211

619

123

214

705
5833

203

112

608

714

210

823
221

817

212

819

102

808

208

211

11
1

104

605

209

209

712

219

209

805

106

220

202

219

<NULL>

<NULL>

208

211

214 107

612

212

901

801

207

211

811

815

702

803

210

816

215

726

208

218

1603

1703

1509

224

821

204

226

<N
UL

L>

806

207
205

211 209

813

W ROBIN LN

W BEE LINE LN

S 
RO

Y 
RE

YN
O

LD
S 

DR

HA
RL

EY
 D

R

DOVE LN

W BOB WHITE LN
RO

BE
RT

LE
W

IS

CI
TY

 A
CC

ES
S 

B

Z22-14

214 - 216 W. Bob White Lane
Zoning Districts

B-3 Local Business District

B-4 Secondary and Highway Business District

R-1 One-Family Dwelling District

R-2 Two-Family Dwelling District

R-3 Multi-Family Dwelling District

R-MH Manufactured Home Park District

Zoning

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VII.4.

Page 120 of 186



203
207

221

202

810

1505

1601

58
07

837

1805

808

811

801

201

807

1705

5829

621

1503

222
226

5827

5835 <N
UL

L>

205

205

5710

5803

1507

223

215

5801

703

201220

212

225

211

5838

815

220

217

205

211

108

218

206

220

203

1605

5711

803

1801

206

210

216

218

813
217

222

202

218

224

217

216

206

206

701

1803

5831

5805

5802

213

809

209

219

213

109

204

104

214

805

225

211

619

123

214

705
5833

203

112

608

714

210

823
221

817

212

819

102

808

208

211

11
1

104

605

209

209

712

219

209

805

106

220

202

219

<NULL>

<NULL>

208

211

214 107

612

212

901

801

207

211

811

815

702

803

210

816

215

726

208

218

1603

1703

1509

224

821

204

226

<N
UL

L>

806

207
205

211 209

813

W ROBIN LN

W BEE LINE LN

S 
RO

Y 
RE

YN
O

LD
S 

DR

HA
RL

EY
 D

R

DOVE LN

W BOB WHITE LN
RO

BE
RT

LE
W

IS

CI
TY

 A
CC

ES
S 

B

Z22-14

214 - 216 W. Bob White Lane

Existing Land Use
Low Density Residential
Medium Density Residential
High Density Residential
Regional Center
Community Centers
Government/Public Space

Existing Land Use

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VII.4.

Page 121 of 186



203
207

221

202

810

1505

1601

58
07

837

1805

808

811

801

201

807

1705

5829

621

1503

222
226

5827

5835 <N
UL

L>

205

205

5710

5803

1507

223

215

5801

703

201220

212

225

211

5838

815

220

217

205

211

108

218

206

220

203

1605

5711

803

1801

206

210

216

218

813
217

222

202

218

224

217

216

206

206

701

1803

5831

5805

5802

213

809

209

219

213

109

204

104

214

805

225

211

619

123

214

705
5833

203

112

608

714

210

823
221

817

212

819

102

808

208

211

11
1

104

605

209

209

712

219

209

805

106

220

202

219

<NULL>

<NULL>

208

211

214 107

612

212

901

801

207

211

811

815

702

803

210

816

215

726

208

218

1603

1703

1509

224

821

204

226

<N
UL

L>

806

207
205

211 209

813

W ROBIN LN

W BEE LINE LN

S 
RO

Y 
RE

YN
O

LD
S 

DR

HA
RL

EY
 D

R

DOVE LN

W BOB WHITE LN
RO

BE
RT

LE
W

IS

CI
TY

 A
CC

ES
S 

B

Z22-14

214 - 216 W. Bob White Lane

Land Use Plan
Low Density Residential
Community Center
Government/Public Space

Land Use Plan

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VII.4.

Page 122 of 186



712

5802
5711

108

209

1505

<NULL>

<NULL>

1805

809

221

205

202

5838

208

213

220

211

209

210

211

224

109

207

1703

107

211

837

821

226

<N
UL

L> 801

202

215

206

209
205

208

813

104

218

1601

219

202

214

808

803

223

608

112

714

220

1503

5710

204

201

11
1

805

823 605

209

5835

901

214

106220 203

217

222

216

210

811

5801

221

801

205

1801

<N
UL

L>

218

212

1603

807

210

1509

819

817

5831

218

212

205

218

808

726

5833

226

1605

219

1507

203

207

5805

815

705

211
209

5803

204

225

703

1803

222

806

219

203

12
0

5827

214805

102

211

58
07

206

123

212
225

1705

211

813

216

803

208

211

5829

217

701

816

612

619
224

811

220

206

621

207

815

217

215

213

201

810

104

702

206

W ROBIN LN

W BEE LINE LN

S 
RO

Y 
RE

YN
O

LD
S 

DR

HA
RL

EY
 D

R

DOVE LN

W BOB WHITE LN
RO

BE
RT

LE
W

IS

CI
TY

 A
CC

ES
S 

B

Z22-14

214 - 216 W. Bob White Lane
200 Foot Buffer
400 Foot Buffer
Recommend Denial (2)
Recommend Approval (1)
200 Foot Notified Properties (19)
400 Foot Notified Properties (53)

Notification

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VII.4.

Page 123 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.4.

Page 124 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.4.

Page 125 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.4.

Page 126 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.4.

Page 127 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.4.

Page 128 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.4.

Page 129 of 186



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF  THE  CITY  OF  HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS GRANTING 
R2-I (TWO-FAMILY INFILL DWELLING DISTRICT) ON PROPERTIES 
DESCRIBED AS MEADOW ACRES, BLOCK 005, LOT PT 2, (E 1/2 OF 2), 
GENERALLY LOCATED AT 214 W. BOB WHITE LANE, HARKER HEIGHTS, 
BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND MEADOW ACRES, BLOCK 005, LOT PT 2 (W 1/2 
OF 2), GENERALLY LOCATED AT 216 W. BOB WHITE LANE, HARKER 
HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS. 

WHEREAS, the City Council (“Council”) of the City of Harker Heights (“City”) finds 
that after due notice and public hearings as required by law, and after consideration of the 
recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, it is necessary and desirable to 
amend the Code of Harker Heights (“Code”) as hereinafter provided; and 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public, and 
notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law, all in 
strict accordance with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1: The Council officially finds and declares that the facts and recitations set 
forth in the preamble to this Ordinance are true and correct. 

SECTION 2: The hereinafter-described property, as previously zoned R-3 (Multi-Family 
Dwelling District) to R2-I (Two-Family Infill Dwelling District) on properties described as 
Meadow Acres, Block 005, Lot PT 2, (E 1/2 of 2), generally located at 214 W. Bob White 
Lane, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, and Meadow Acres, Block 005, Lot PT 2 (W 
1/2 of 2), generally located at 216 W. Bob White Lane, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas. 

SECTION 3: Table VII, Table of Special Ordinances, of the Code is hereby supplemented 
by adding the following entry: 

 
Ord. No.  Date Passed   Description 
    
2022-   6/14/2022 Granting R2-I (Two-Family Infill 

Dwelling District) on properties 
described as Meadow Acres, Block 005, 
Lot PT 2, (E 1/2 of 2), generally located 
at 214 W. Bob White Lane, Harker 
Heights, Bell County, Texas, and 
Meadow Acres, Block 005, Lot PT 2 (W 
1/2 of 2), generally located at 216 W. 
Bob White Lane, Harker Heights, Bell 
County, Texas 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.4.

Page 130 of 186



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

SECTION 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall be effective from and after its passage, and the City 
Clerk shall publish the caption or title of hereof within ten days as required by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Harker Heights on June 
14, 2022. 

 
 
 

  
Spencer H. Smith, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Juliette Helsham, City Secretary 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.4.

Page 131 of 186



City Council Memorandum

FROM: The Office of the City Manager DATE: June 14, 2022

CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AN 
ORDINANCE TO CHANGE ZONING DESIGNATION FROM R-1 (ONE-FAMILY DWELLING 
DISTRICT) TO R-2 (TWO-FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT) ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS 
VALLEY VIEW, BLOCK 002, LOT 0009, GENERALLY LOCATED AT 117 E. VALLEY RD., 
HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION. 
(PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR)

EXPLANATION:
The applicant is requesting a change from the current zoning of R-1 (One-Family Dwelling 
District) to R-2 (Two-Family Dwelling District) on property generally located at 117 E. Valley 
Road.

Parcel History
This parcel is located within the original area of the city incorporation (1960), as part of the 
Valley View subdivision. Per Bell County Appraisal District, the property is shown as vacant. 
Aerial images do indicate there was a structure on site until approximately January 2022; 
however, there has not been active water service at this address since November 2020.
 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS:
Surrounding Land Uses
Adjacent land uses include those identified in the table below.
 

 
The 2021 Land Use Plan identifies this area being designated for Medium Density Residential 
use. The proposed rezoning with its intended use will not likely have any adverse impact on 
the neighborhood and is consistent with the 2021 updates to the City of Harker Heights 
Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Plan.
 
Thoroughfare Plan
Valley Rd. is classified as a residential street in the Mobility 2030 Thoroughfare Plan. Per 
§154.01 of the City’s code of ordinances, Residential Streets are defined as: “Streets that 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.5.

Page 132 of 186



serve individual residential lots. They carry low traffic volumes at low speeds. RESIDENTIAL 
STREETS shall be 36 feet in width back-of-curb to back-of-curb with a minimum 60 feet of 
right-of-way. These are streets that serve individual residential lots”. 
 
Flood Damage Prevention
No portion of this property lies within the 100 year or 500-year flood hazard areas.
 
Pharr vs. Tippett Considerations

1. The proposed use and rezoning are compatible with the current Comprehensive Plan 
and Land Use Plan. 

2. The proposed use and rezoning will have no adverse impact on surrounding properties. 
3. The proposed use and rezoning are compatible with existing uses and zoning in the 

neighborhood. 
4. The proposed use and rezoning do not pose an adverse impact to the public health, 

safety, or general welfare.
 
NOTICES:
Based on the most recently approved tax roll available, staff sent out sixty-one (61) notices to 
property owners within the 400-foot notification area. As of May 19, 2022, one (1) response 
was received in favor of the request, and four (4) responses were received in opposition of the 
request. Any additional responses received after the above date will be provided during the 
meeting. 

Two of the responses in opposition are located on parcels located completely within the 200-
foot notification area, and one response in opposition is for a parcel located partially within the 
200-foot notification area. 

Total area of land within the 200-foot notification area is: 214,426.15 sq. ft. 
Total area of land within the 200-foot notification area recommending denial is: 24,565.38 sq. 
Ft. 
Percentage of land area recommending denial: 11.45%

Per Texas Local Government Code Section 211.006, opposition that is written and signed by 
the owners of at least 20% of the area of the lots within the 200-foot buffer requires a super 
majority vote for approval. Note that when 20% of the number of landowners within the 200 
foot buffer have provided written and signed opposition, there is not a requirement of Texas 
Local Government Code nor the City’s Code of Ordinances for a super majority vote by the 
Planning & Zoning Commission.

RECOMMENDATION:
Alternatives Considered
Staff considered two (2) alternatives for this case.

1. Recommend approval of the applicant’s zoning request as presented.
2. Recommend disapproval of the applicants zoning request.

 
Staff Recommendation
Staff recommended approval to the Planning & Zoning Commission of an ordinance to change 
zoning designation from R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) to R-2 (Two-Family Dwelling 
District) for the property in this case.

AGENDA ITEM #VII.5.

Page 133 of 186



 
ACTION TAKEN BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION:
During the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting held on May 25, 2022, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission voted (7-0) to recommend approval of an ordinance to grant R-2 (Two-
Family Dwelling District) for the property in this case, based on staff’s recommendation and 
findings.

ACTION BY THE COUNCIL:
1. Motion to approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove with explanation an 

ordinance to change zoning designation from R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) to R-2 
(Two-Family Dwelling District) on property described as Valley View, Block 002, Lot 
0009, generally located at 117 E. Valley Rd., Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, based 
on staff’s recommendation and findings.

2. Any other action deemed necessary.

ATTACHMENTS:
Z22-11_03-PropOrdinance
Z22-11_02-Attachments

AGENDA ITEM #VII.5.

Page 134 of 186



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF  THE  CITY  OF  HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS GRANTING 
R-2 (TWO-FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT) ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS 
VALLEY VIEW, BLOCK 002, LOT 0009, GENERALLY LOCATED AT 117 E. 
VALLEY RD., HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS. 

WHEREAS, the City Council (“Council”) of the City of Harker Heights (“City”) finds 
that after due notice and public hearings as required by law, and after consideration of the 
recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, it is necessary and desirable to 
amend the Code of Harker Heights (“Code”) as hereinafter provided; and 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public, and 
notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law, all in 
strict accordance with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1: The Council officially finds and declares that the facts and recitations set 
forth in the preamble to this Ordinance are true and correct. 

SECTION 2: The hereinafter-described property, as previously zoned R-1 (One-Family 
Dwelling District) to R-2 (Two-Family Dwelling District) on property described as Valley 
View, Block 002, Lot 0009, generally located at 117 E. Valley Rd., Harker Heights, Bell 
County, Texas. 

SECTION 3: Table VII, Table of Special Ordinances, of the Code is hereby supplemented 
by adding the following entry: 

 
Ord. No.  Date Passed   Description 
    
2022-   6/14/2022 Granting R-2 (Two-Family Dwelling 

District) on property described as 
Valley View, Block 002, Lot 0009, 
generally located at 117 E. Valley Rd., 
Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas 

 
 

SECTION 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall be effective from and after its passage, and the City 
Clerk shall publish the caption or title of hereof within ten days as required by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Harker Heights on June 
14, 2022. 

 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.5.

Page 135 of 186



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 

  
Spencer H. Smith, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Juliette Helsham, City Secretary 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #VII.5.

Page 136 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.5.

Page 137 of 186



A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VII.5.

Page 138 of 186



105

20
0

201

110

<N
UL

L>

102

128

101

123

303
304

207

203
10

9

128

103

120

116

201

113

101

200

203

102

117

204

119

121

214

118
120

301

208

212

128

123

112

106

119

103

111

122

121
10

8

109

108

111

302

123

210

126

115

118

125

122

110

206

117

203
122

124

304

212

126

104

111

301

200

209

213

113

101

108

208

114

125

108

104

102

10
9

125

204
202

205

215

10
0

117

124

118

201

121

200

105

117

123

205

120

115

127

109

114

211

302

204

206

107

108

<NULL>

209

106

116

<N
UL

L>

126

103

216

107

116

125

202

410<NULL>

110

105

119

127

214

210

101

113

115

202

202

119

106

113

112

112
114

126

110

102

116

102
104

111

106
108

213
104

200

113

102

114

111

215

127

206

210

127

124

300

205
<NULL>

<NULL>

204

217

128

E VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

W VETERANS
MEMORIAL BLVD

W VALLEY RD

WKATHEYRD

N 
AN

N 
BL

VD

N 
AM

Y 
LN

RA
ND

Y 
BL

VD

S 
AM

Y 
LN

S 
AN

N 
BL

VD

TURNBO RD

COX DR

E VALLEY RD

E KATHEY RD

BALL RD

JR
 B

CO
X 

AC
CE

SS
 A

Z22-11

117 E. Valley Rd.

Zoning Districts
B-4 Secondary and Highway Business District

B-5 General Business District

R-1 One-Family Dwelling District

R-1 (M) One-Family Manufactured Home Dwelling District

R-2 Two-Family Dwelling District

R-3 Multi-Family Dwelling District

R-MH Manufactured Home Park District

R-MU Mixed Residential

Zoning

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VII.5.

Page 139 of 186



105

20
0

201

110

<N
UL

L>

102

128

101

123

303
304

207

203
10

9

128

103

120

116

201

113

101

200

203

102

117

204

119

121

214

118
120

301

208

212

128

123

112

106

119

103

111

122

121
10

8

109

108

111

302

123

210

126

115

118

125

122

110

206

117

203
122

124

304

212

126

104

111

301

200

209

213

113

101

108

208

114

125

108

104

102

10
9

125

204
202

205

215

10
0

117

124

118

201

121

200

105

117

123

205

120

115

127

109

114

211

302

204

206

107

108

<NULL>

209

106

116

<N
UL

L>

126

103

216

107

116

125

202

410<NULL>

110

105

119

127

214

210

101

113

115

202

202

119

106

113

112

112
114

126

110

102

116

102
104

111

106
108

213
104

200

113

102

114

111

215

127

206

210

127

124

300

205
<NULL>

<NULL>

204

217

128

E VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

W VETERANS
MEMORIAL BLVD

W VALLEY RD

WKATHEYRD

N 
AN

N 
BL

VD

N 
AM

Y 
LN

RA
ND

Y 
BL

VD

S 
AM

Y 
LN

S 
AN

N 
BL

VD

TURNBO RD

COX DR

E VALLEY RD

E KATHEY RD

BALL RD

JR
 B

CO
X 

AC
CE

SS
 A

Z22-11

117 E. Valley Rd.

Existing Land Use
Low Density Residential
Medium Density Residential
High Density Residential
Regional Center
Government/Public Space
Parks_Open Space

Existing Land Use

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VII.5.

Page 140 of 186



105

20
0

201

110

<N
UL

L>

102

128

101

123

303
304

207

203
10

9

128

103

120

116

201

113

101

200

203

102

117

204

119

121

214

118
120

301

208

212

128

123

112

106

119

103

111

122

121
10

8

109

108

111

302

123

210

126

115

118

125

122

110

206

117

203
122

124

304

212

126

104

111

301

200

209

213

113

101

108

208

114

125

108

104

102

10
9

125

204
202

205

215

10
0

117

124

118

201

121

200

105

117

123

205

120

115

127

109

114

211

302

204

206

107

108

<NULL>

209

106

116

<N
UL

L>

126

103

216

107

116

125

202

410<NULL>

110

105

119

127

214

210

101

113

115

202

202

119

106

113

112

112
114

126

110

102

116

102
104

111

106
108

213
104

200

113

102

114

111

215

127

206

210

127

124

300

205
<NULL>

<NULL>

204

217

128

E VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

W VETERANS
MEMORIAL BLVD

W VALLEY RD

WKATHEYRD

N 
AN

N 
BL

VD

N 
AM

Y 
LN

RA
ND

Y 
BL

VD

S 
AM

Y 
LN

S 
AN

N 
BL

VD

TURNBO RD

COX DR

E VALLEY RD

E KATHEY RD

BALL RD

JR
 B

CO
X 

AC
CE

SS
 A

Z22-11

117 E. Valley Rd.

Land Use Plan
Low Density Residential
Medium Density Residential
High Density Residential
Regional Center
Community Center
Parks & Open Space

Land Use Plan

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VII.5.

Page 141 of 186



115

102

120

106

206

205

214

102

209

215

123

125

113

111

122

126

303

112

20
0

104

204

10
8

101

118

113

200
123

116

300

117

203

200

200

114

410

213

117

121

102

101

104

128

217

126

125

201

123

10
9

101

110

128

125

10
9

117

202

204

102

108

106

205

116

105 122

208

124

201

<N
UL

L>

120

214

121
119

203

109

127

106

113

104

212

112

119

113

122

<NULL>

204

106

304

117

105

205

207

202

105

124

302

109

110

120

103

210

114

204

107

<NULL>

101

107

108

208

110

213

<N
UL

L>

111

118

202

128

200

115

211

302

103

206

210

206

111

202

112
103

301

119

108

126

210

124

10
0

104

116

301

121

114

201

102

215

102

304

115

126

<NULL>

108

<NULL>

116

123

113

114

127

118

108
125

216
203

212

119

127

110

111

127

128

111

209

E VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

W VETERANS
MEMORIAL BLVD

W VALLEY RD

WKATHEYRD

N 
AN

N 
BL

VD

N 
AM

Y 
LN

RA
ND

Y 
BL

VD

S 
AM

Y 
LN

S 
AN

N 
BL

VD

TURNBO RD

COX DR

E VALLEY RD

E KATHEY RD

BALL RD

JR
 B

CO
X 

AC
CE

SS
 A

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

Z22-11

117 E. Valley Rd.

200 Foot Buffer

400 Foot Buffer

Recommend Denial (4)

Recommend Approval (1)

200 Foot Notified Properties (27)

400 Foot Notified Properties (60)

Notification

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VII.5.

Page 142 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.5.

Page 143 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.5.

Page 144 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.5.

Page 145 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.5.

Page 146 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VII.5.

Page 147 of 186



 

City Council Memorandum 
 

 
FROM: The Office of the City Manager DATE: June 14, 2022 

 
DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVAL OF A FINAL PLAT REFERRED TO AS FIRESIDE 
HEIGHTS ADDITION, ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS A 0.799 ACRE TRACT OF LAND IN 
BELL COUNTY, SURVEY,ELIZABETH THE OF DAWSON BEING TEXAS, PART 
ABSTRACT NO. 258, THE LAND HEREIN BEING PART OF LOT 1, BLOCK 1, FIRESIDE 
ADDITION, AN ADDITION TO THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, BEING OF 
RECORD IN CABINET C, SLIDE 199-D, PLAT RECORDS OF BELL COUNTY, TEXAS 
(P.R.B.C.T.), AND BEING A CALLED 0.80 ACRE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED IN A 
GENERAL WARRANTY DEED TO J & U PROPERTIES, LLC, BEING DESCRIBED IN 
EXHIBIT “A” OF RECORD INSTRUMENT NO. 2015- PUBLIC 00008355, OFFICIAL 
RECORDS OF REAL PROPERTY, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.R.P.B.C.T.), AND TAKE 
THE APPROPRIATE ACTION. (PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR) 
 
 
EXPLANATION: 
  
The applicant submitted an application for administrative plat approval for approximately 0.8 
acres of land north of E. Knight’s Way/E. FM 2410 and west of Warrior’s Path Rd. The parcel 
was previously approved as a Minor Plat named Fireside Addition and filed for record in March 
2000.  The platting action from the current application would separate the original parcel 
approved into two (2) separate lots.  The 2021 Land Use Plan identifies this parcel for 
Regional Center land use. 
 
The initial application for this plat case was received on March 30, 2022, to be presented at the 
Planning & Zoning (P&Z) Meeting on April 27, 2022. The applicant withdrew the original plat 
application prior to the P&Z Meeting and re-applied on April 27, 2022. This plat is now is 
scheduled to be heard at the May 25, 2022 Planning & Zoning Meeting, and the June 14, 2022 
City Council Meeting.   
 
Additional Right of Way (ROW) dedication was deemed to be required for the plat area based 
on the City’s adopted Thoroughfare Plan and required ROW widths as identified in §154.37(C). 
Based on staff’s review of the plat case and the City’s Code of Ordinances, this submission 
does not meet the requirements of a Minor Plat submission. Therefore, the plat must be 
considered as a Final Plat and requires action by the Planning & Zoning Commission and City 
Council. 
 
As of May 19, 2022, staff had reviewed the submitted Final Plat and made comments to 
address safety, and other pertinent requirements to ensure that all developmental regulations 
stipulated in the City of Harker Heights Code of Ordinances will be adhered to. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

AGENDA ITEM #VIII.1.

Page 148 of 186



Staff Recommendation 
On May 16, 2022, staff returned comments to the applicant. As of May 19, 2022, revisions 
based on staff comments had not been received. Staff therefore recommended approval to the 
Planning & Zoning Commission of the Final Plat for the subdivision referred to as Fireside 
Heights Addition with the following condition: 

1. Delineate the location of the proposed driveway and provide a 1’ non-access easement 
along the remaining portion of FM 2410. 

  
  
ACTION TAKEN BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 
  
During the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting held on May 25, 2022, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission voted (7-0) to recommend approval of a Final Plat for the subdivision 
referred to as Fireside Heights Addition, on property described as a 0.799 acre tract of land in 
Bell County, Texas, being part of the Elizabeth Dawson Survey, Abstract No. 258, the land 
herein being part of Lot 1, Block 1, Fireside Addition, an addition to the City of Harker Heights, 
Texas, being of record in Cabinet C, Slide 199-D, Plat Records of Bell County, Texas 
(P.R.B.C.T.), and being a called 0.80 acre tract of land conveyed in a General Warranty Deed 
to J & U Properties, LLC, being described in Exhibit “A” of record Instrument No. 2015-
00008355, Official Public Records of Real Property, Bell County, Texas (O.P.R.R.P.B.C.T.) 
with the condition as presented by staff and based on staff’s recommendations and findings. 
  
 
ACTION BY THE COUNCIL: 

1. Motion to approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove with explanation a request for 
a Final Plat referred to as Fireside Heights Addition, on property described as a 0.799 
acre tract of land in Bell County, Texas, being part of the Elizabeth Dawson Survey, 
Abstract No. 258, the land herein being part of Lot 1, Block 1, Fireside Addition, an 
addition to the City of Harker Heights, Texas, being of record in Cabinet C, Slide 199-D, 
Plat Records of Bell County, Texas (P.R.B.C.T.), and being a called 0.80 acre tract of 
land conveyed in a General Warranty Deed to J & U Properties, LLC, being described in 
Exhibit “A” of record Instrument No. 2015-00008355, Official Public Records of Real 
Property, Bell County, Texas (O.P.R.R.P.B.C.T.) with the condition as presented by 
staff and based on staff’s recommendations and findings.  

2. Any other action desired. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
P22-15_02_Attachments 

AGENDA ITEM #VIII.1.

Page 149 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VIII.1.

Page 150 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VIII.1.

Page 151 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VIII.1.

Page 152 of 186



A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VIII.1.

Page 153 of 186



SH
EE

T 
TI

TL
E:

SHEET        

FI
R

ES
ID

E 
H

EI
G

H
TS

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

H
AR

KE
R

 H
EI

G
H

TS
, B

EL
L 

 C
O

U
N

TY
, T

EX
AS

D
R

AI
N

AG
E 

& 
TO

PO
G

R
AP

H
Y 

LA
YO

U
T

D1

&

MIT
CH

EL

L

ASSO
C

IA
TES

N

E

S

W

CIVIL  ENGINEERS
LA

ND SURVEYORS

E
S

T
.

 1
9

7
5

S:
\S

UB
D

IV
IS

IO
N

S\
22

-0
16

-D
-S

 (1
82

5 
E 

FM
 2

41
0 

- F
ire

sid
e 

He
ig

ht
s A

d
d

iti
on

 - 
HH

)\
d

w
g\

22
-0

16
-D

-S
 F

ire
sid

e 
He

ig
ht

s A
d

d
iti

on
 T

op
o.

d
w

g
 4

/2
7/

20
22

 4
:0

2 
PM

BE
IN

G
 A

 R
EP

LA
T 

O
F 

PA
R

T 
O

F 
LO

T 
1,

 B
LO

C
K 

1,
FI

R
ES

ID
E 

AD
D

IT
IO

N

THE FINAL DEVELOPED CONDITION IS UNKNOWN AT THIS
TIME. BASED ON A CONCEPTUAL DEVELOPMENT, PER THE
CURRENT ZONING, AN INCREASE IN STORM WATER PEAK
FLOWS IS ANTICIPATED. A STORM WATER MITIGATION PLAN
MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH ANY FUTURE DEVELOPMENT.

Time of Concentration and Runoff Coefficient

Drainage Legend

Existing Time Of Concentration

Existing Watershed Boundary

Proposed Time Of Concentration

Proposed Watershed Boundary

Existing Drainage Arrow

Proposed Drainage Arrow

WATERSHED BOUNDARY LABEL

Proposed Sub-Basin Area

Existing Sub-Basin Area

Proposed Sub-Basin Area for Street
and/or Channel Capacities

NOTES:
1. DRAINAGE CALCULATIONS FOR THIS PLAT ARE BASED UPON THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS DRAINAGE CRITERIA

MANUAL, DATED MAY 9, 2007. ROUTING CALCULATIONS ARE BASED UPON THE RATIONAL METHOD WITH A MINIMUM
TIME OF CONCENTRATION OF 10 MINUTES. OVERLAND FLOW AND OTHER HYDRAULIC CALCULATIONS ARE BASED
UPON THE MANNING'S EQUATION.

2. THE DRAINAGE AREA MAPS AND CALCULATIONS PROVIDED HEREIN ARE PRELIMINARY IN NATURE, AND ARE INTENDED
TO PROVIDE A CONCEPTUAL DESIGN ONLY. FINAL SITE DRAINAGE DESIGN MAY VARY FROM THE CONCEPTUAL DESIGN
SHOWN HEREIN, BUT MUST BE BASED IN SOUND ENGINEERING PRINCIPLES IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY OF HARKER
HEIGHTS DRAINAGE CRITERIA MANUAL.

3. UNDER DEVELOPED CONDITIONS ALL UPSTREAM FLOWS SHALL BE ACCEPTED ON SITE AS THEY CURRENTLY EXIST.

4. TOPOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION IS FOR DRAINAGE PURPOSES ONLY AND IS NOT TO BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION.
TOPOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION SHOWN IS DERIVED FROM THE UNITED STATES GEOGRAPHICAL SURVEY(USGS), [BELL,
BURNET, MCLENNAN COUNTIES LIDAR, 2011] AS DOWNLOADED FROM THE TNRIS DATAHUB WEB 2021-07-21.

5. IN NO INSTANCE SHALL A POINT DISCHARGE BE ALLOWED ONTO AN ADJACENT DOWNSTREAM PROPERTY, UNLESS
APPROXIMATING A PREDEVELOPMENT CONDITION. THE USE OF LEVEL SPREADER(S) OR AN EQUIVALENT STRUCTURE
SHALL BE USED TO PREVENT A POINT DISCHARGE.

6. UNDER PROPOSED CONDITIONS, THE SITE SHALL BE GRADED SUCH THAT ANY RUNOFF WILL SHEET FLOW ACROSS THE
PROPERTY LINE ONTO THE ADJACENT DOWNSTREAM PROPERTY OWNER, UNLESS APPROXIMATING A PREDEVELOPMENT
CONDITION..

STATE  OF  TEXAS

L I CENSEDPROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

ACE RENEAU

136141

04
/2

7/
22

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VIII.1.

Page 154 of 186

AutoCAD SHX Text
750

AutoCAD SHX Text
738

AutoCAD SHX Text
760

AutoCAD SHX Text
770

AutoCAD SHX Text
780

AutoCAD SHX Text
790

AutoCAD SHX Text
800

AutoCAD SHX Text
810

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMARKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.B.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MITCHELL & ASSOCIATES, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING & SURVEYING 102 N. COLLEGE KILLEEN, TEXAS 76541 PHONE: (254) 634-5541 FAX: (254) 634-2141

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEXAS BOARD OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 3241 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T. B. P. L. S. FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 100204-00

AutoCAD SHX Text
22-016-D-S

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARCH 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1999/8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 BLOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.799 Ac.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FB/LB:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA:

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
800

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPROPERTY OWNER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
J & U PROPERTIES LLC 510 OMAR DR. KILLEEN, TX 76542

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USURVEYOR/ENGINEER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
MITCHELL & ASSOCIATES, INC. P.O. BOX 1088 KILLEEN, TX 76540

AutoCAD SHX Text
DA A 65.86 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE AREA ABBREVIATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERSHED LETTER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA (ACRES) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERSHED I.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Storm Water Discharge Summary

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drainage Basin

AutoCAD SHX Text
DA A

AutoCAD SHX Text
25 Year Storm Event

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing (cfs)

AutoCAD SHX Text
304.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
Developed (cfs)

AutoCAD SHX Text
307.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
Change (cfs)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 Year Storm Event

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing (cfs)

AutoCAD SHX Text
425.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
Developed (cfs)

AutoCAD SHX Text
428.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
Change (cfs)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.07



1829

2303

1827

2207

2509

2506

2308

2501

2505

2513
2510

2508

1702

2500

1707

2503

2505

2300

1629

2505

1761
<NULL>

25102511

2502 1832

2302

2209

17
05

<NULL>

2509

2314

1700

25062506

2508

2507

2500

13939
2504

2404

2500

1709 2511

<NULL>

2501

<NULL>

2506

13
87

7

2502

2507

2503

14111

2501 2500

<NULL>

2310

1532 1534

2301

<N
U

LL
>

<NULL>

1626

25042504

2509

<NULL>

2502

1825

1901

<N
UL

L>

2211

<NULL>

<NULL>

2204

13960

2315

<NULL>

FM 2410
Community

Park

Comanche
Gap Park

E KNIGHTS WAY

W
AR

RI
O

RS
PA

TH
RD

G
RA

NI
TE

TR
L

IN
DI

AN
 T

RA
IL

 D
R

LI
M

ES
TO

NE
TR

L MARBLE TRL

Q
U

AR
TZ

 T
RL

CO
M

A
NC

HE
 G

A
P 

RD

AN
CI

EN
T

O
AK

S
F

A
N

C
IE

N
T 

O
A

K
S 

A

ANCIENT OAKS E

CADDO LN

RUIZ DR

ANCIENT OAKS B

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

P22-15

Fireside Heights Addition

Location Map

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VIII.1.

Page 155 of 186



1 
 

FIRESIDE HEIGHTS ADDITION 

P22-15 Final Plat – Fireside Heights Addition 
 

Plat Distributed to HH Staff: April 29, 2022 
Comments Sent to Engineer: May 16, 2022 

 
Planning & Development, Kristina Ramirez & Yvonne Spell  

1. Applicant must delineate the location of the proposed driveway and provide a 1’ non-access 
easement along the remaining portion of FM 2410. 

2. Applicant is advised that the Knight’s Way Overlay District requirements apply to 
development on this parcel. Additionally, sidewalks will be required upon site 
development. 
 

Public Works, Mark Hyde  

• No comments  

City Engineer, Otto Wiederhold  

• No comments  

Fire Marshal, Brad Alley  

• No Comments 

Building Official, Mike Beard 

• No comments received and may be forthcoming. 

ONCOR, Steven Hugghins 

• No comments received and may be forthcoming. 

Century Link/ Lumen, Chris McGuire 

•  No comments received and may be forthcoming. 

Spectrum, Shaun Whitehead 

• No comments received and may be forthcoming. 

ATMOS, Rusty Fischer 

• No comments received and may be forthcoming. 

AGENDA ITEM #VIII.1.

Page 156 of 186



2 
 

TxDOT, Richard Rangel & Stephen Kasberg 

1. Requests a 1’ non-access easement except where the driveway will be located 
2. Applicant will need to contact TxDOT for driveway access permits.  

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #VIII.1.

Page 157 of 186



1 
 

FIRESIDE HEIGHTS ADDITION 

P22-12 Final Plat – Fireside Heights Addition 
 

Plat Distributed to HH Staff: March 31, 2022 
Comments Sent to Engineer: April 14, 2022 

 
Planning & Development, Kristina Ramirez & Yvonne Spell  

1. Applicant and/or the Applicant’s representative shall schedule and attend the mandatory 
pre-development meeting with the City’s development staff. Contact 
planning@harkerheights.gov to schedule the meeting.  

2. Applicant must delineate the location of the proposed driveway and provide a 1’ non-access 
easement along the remaining portion of FM 2410. 

3. Pending TXDOT’s approval of the driveway location, a 30’ passage/access easement 
across the front of the property may also be required. 

4. Applicant shall illustrate and annotate the setbacks on the plat dedication page. 
5. Applicant shall provide a storm water plan/drainage analysis.  
6. Per §154.21(C)(1)(b) the title block shall include the proposed subdivision name, phase, 

block and lot numbers, current legal description (or reference thereto), acreage, name and 
address of property owner, name and address of surveyor/engineer, date of survey, date of 
preparation and page content title. This title block shall be present on each page of the plat. 
Please amend the title block per Ordinance. 

7. Applicant shall amend the plat dedication page to include all signature blocks required for 
a final plat. 

8. FM 2410 is identified as an Arterial on the City’s Thoroughfare Plan. As such a 120-foot 
right-of-way (ROW) is required. Applicant shall provide half of the required ROW needed 
to meet the 120-foot requirement. This ROW dedication will require this plat to be 
processed as a Final Plat. 

9. Provide LLC paperwork and provide authorization for those who can sign for J&U 
Properties, LLC.  

10. Applicant shall provide a digital copy of the final plat per Section 154.20(B)(3)(c). Digital 
final plat files should be submitted in DXF, DWG or GIS shapefile/feature class/coverage 
format. 

11. Applicant is advised that the Knight’s Way Overlay District requirements apply to 
development on this parcel. Additionally, sidewalks will be required upon site 
development. 
 

Public Works, Mark Hyde  

1. Change the annotation of the existing 15’ PUE along FM 2410 to 15’ Public Utility & 
Drainage Easement. 

 

AGENDA ITEM #VIII.1.

Page 158 of 186

mailto:planning@harkerheights.gov


2 
 

2. The dedication block on the plat has numerous items listed including “drives” to be 
dedicated to the City of Harker Heights.  All of the public infrastructure shown on the 
plat has already been dedicated to the City of Harker Heights. 

 

City Engineer, Otto Wiederhold  

• No comments  

Fire Marshal, Brad Alley  

• No Comments 

Building Official, Mike Beard 

• No comments received and may be forthcoming. 

ONCOR, Steven Hugghins 

• No comments received and may be forthcoming. 

Century Link/ Lumen, Chris McGuire 

•  No comments received and may be forthcoming. 

Spectrum, Shaun Whitehead 

• No comments received and may be forthcoming. 

ATMOS, Rusty Fischer 

• No comments received and may be forthcoming. 

TxDOT, Richard Rangel & Stephen Kasberg 

1. Requests a 1’ non-access easement except where the driveway will be located 
2. Applicant will need to contact TxDOT for driveway access permits.  

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #VIII.1.

Page 159 of 186



 

City Council Memorandum 
 

 
FROM: The Office of the City Manager DATE: June 14, 2022 

 
DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVAL OF A FINAL PLAT REFERRED TO AS FILMTECH 
ADDITION, ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS A 1.454 ACRE TRACT OF LAND IN BELL 
COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THE URIAH HUNT SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 401, THE 
LAND HEREIN BEING ALL OF A CALLED 1.455 ACRE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED IN A 
WARRANTY DEED WITH VENDOR’S LIEN TO FILMTECH.COM, LLC, BEING DESCRIBED 
IN EXHIBIT “A” OF RECORD IN INSTRUMENT NO. 2020027121, OFFICIAL PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF REAL PROPERTY, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.R.P.B.C.T.), AND TAKE 
THE APPROPRIATE ACTION. (PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR) 
 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The applicant submitted an application for minor plat approval for approximately 1.455 acres of 
residential land near the northeast corner of Warrior’s Path Road and E. Knight’s Way/E. FM 
2410. The proposed development will consist of one lot that is currently zoned R-1 (One-
Family Dwelling District). The 2021 Land Use Plan identifies this parcel for Regional Center 
land use.  
 
The initial application for this plat case was received on March 30, 2022, to be presented at the 
Planning & Zoning (P&Z) Meeting on April 27, 2022. The applicant withdrew the original plat 
application prior to the P&Z Meeting and re-applied on April 27, 2022. This plat is now is 
scheduled to be heard at the May 25, 2022 Planning & Zoning Meeting, and the June 14, 2022 
City Council Meeting.   
 
Additional Right of Way (ROW) dedication was deemed to be required for the plat area based 
on the City’s adopted Thoroughfare Plan and required ROW widths as identified in §154.37(C). 
Based on staff’s review of the plat case and the City’s Code of Ordinances, this submission 
does not meet the requirements of a Minor Plat submission. Therefore, the plat must be 
considered as a Final Plat and requires action by the Planning & Zoning Commission and City 
Council. 
 
As of May 19, 2022, staff had reviewed the submitted Final Plat and made comments to 
address safety, and other pertinent requirements to ensure that all developmental regulations 
stipulated in the City of Harker Heights Code of Ordinances will be adhered to. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff Recommendation 
On May 16, 2022, staff returned comments to the applicant. As of May 19, 2022, revisions 
based on staff comments had not been received. Staff therefore recommended approval to the 
Planning & Zoning Commission of the Final Plat for the subdivision referred to as FilmTech 
Addition with the following conditions: 

AGENDA ITEM #VIII.2.

Page 160 of 186



1. Delineate the location of the proposed driveway and provide a 1’ non-access easement 
along the remaining frontage of FM 2410.  

2. Dedicate a 30’ passage/access easement to property on east side of this platted area, 
to plan for future development. Access only need be dedicated at this point, applicant 
will not be required to install an improved surface for this easement at this time. 

 
  
ACTION TAKEN BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 
  
During the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting held on May 25, 2022, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission voted (7-0) to recommend approval of a Final Plat for the subdivision 
referred to as FilmTech Addition, on property described as a 1.454 acre tract of land in Bell 
County, Texas, being part of the Uriah Hunt Survey, Abstract No. 401, the land herein being all 
of a called 1.455 acre tract of land conveyed in a Warranty Deed with Vendor’s Lien to 
Filmtech.com, LLC, being described in Exhibit “A” of record in Instrument No. 2020027121, 
Official Public Records of Real Property, Bell County, Texas (O.P.R.R.P.B.C.T.) with the 
conditions as presented by staff and based on staff’s recommendations and findings. 
  
 
ACTION BY THE COUNCIL: 
  

1. Motion to approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove with explanation a request for 
a Final Plat referred to as FilmTech Addition, on property described as a 1.454 acre 
tract of land in Bell County, Texas, being part of the Uriah Hunt Survey, Abstract No. 
401, the land herein being all of a called 1.455 acre tract of land conveyed in a Warranty 
Deed with Vendor’s Lien to Filmtech.com, LLC, being described in Exhibit “A” of record 
in Instrument No. 2020027121, Official Public Records of Real Property, Bell County, 
Texas (O.P.R.R.P.B.C.T.) with the conditions as presented by staff and based on staff’s 
recommendations and findings. 

2. Any other action desired. 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
P22-14_02_Attachments 

AGENDA ITEM #VIII.2.

Page 161 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VIII.2.

Page 162 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VIII.2.

Page 163 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VIII.2.

Page 164 of 186



A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VIII.2.

Page 165 of 186



//////////////////////////////
//////

///

/// /// /// /// ///
/// ///

/// /// /// /// /// /// ///

///

///

///

Lot 1
Block 1

1.454 Ac.

SHEET        D1

&

MIT
CH

EL

L

ASSO
C

IA
TES

N

E

S

W

C IVIL  ENGINEER
S

LAND SURVEYORS

E
S

T
.

 1
9

7
5

S:
\S

UB
D

IV
IS

IO
N

S\
22

-0
26

-D
-S

 (1
39

50
 F

M
 2

41
0 

-F
ilm

Te
ch

 A
d

d
iti

on
 - 

HH
)\

d
w

g\
22

-0
26

-D
-S

 F
ilm

Te
ch

 A
d

d
iti

on
 T

op
o.

d
w

g 
4/

26
/2

02
2 

4:
35

 P
M

SH
EE

T 
TI

TL
E:

FI
LM

TE
C

H
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N

H
AR

KE
R

 H
EI

G
H

TS
, B

EL
L 

 C
O

U
N

TY
, T

EX
AS

D
R

AI
N

AG
E 

& 
TO

PO
G

R
AP

H
Y 

LA
YO

U
T

BE
IN

G
 A

LL
 O

F 
A 

C
AL

LE
D

 1
.4

55
 A

C
R

E 
TR

AC
T 

O
F 

LA
N

D
 C

O
N

VE
YE

D
 IN

 A
 W

AR
R

AN
TY

 D
EE

D
 W

IT
H

 V
EN

D
O

R
'S

LI
EN

 T
O

 F
IL

M
TE

C
H

.C
O

M
, L

LC
, 

B
EI

N
G

 D
ES

C
R

IB
ED

 IN
 E

XH
IB

IT
 “

A
” 

O
F 

R
EC

O
R

D
 IN

 IN
ST

R
U

M
EN

T 
N

O
.

20
20

02
71

21
, O

FF
IC

IA
L 

PU
B

LI
C

 R
EC

O
R

D
S 

O
F 

R
EA

L 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

, B
EL

L 
C

O
U

N
TY

, T
EX

A
S

THE FINAL DEVELOPED CONDITION IS UNKNOWN AT THIS
TIME. BASED ON A CONCEPTUAL DEVELOPMENT, BASED
ON THE CURRENT ZONING, AN INCREASE IN STORM WATER
PEAK FLOWS IS ANTICIPATED. A STORM WATER MITIGATION
PLAN MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH ANY FUTURE DEVELOPMENT.

Time of Concentration and Runoff Coefficient

Drainage Legend

Existing Time Of Concentration

Existing Watershed Boundary

Proposed Time Of Concentration

Proposed Watershed Boundary

Existing Drainage Arrow

Proposed Drainage Arrow

WATERSHED BOUNDARY LABEL

Proposed Sub-Basin Area

Existing Sub-Basin Area

Proposed Sub-Basin Area for Street
and/or Channel Capacities

NOTES:
1. DRAINAGE CALCULATIONS FOR THIS PLAT ARE BASED UPON THE CITY OF HARKER

HEIGHTS DRAINAGE CRITERIA MANUAL, DATED MAY 9, 2007. ROUTING
CALCULATIONS ARE BASED UPON THE RATIONAL METHOD WITH A MINIMUM TIME
OF CONCENTRATION OF 10 MINUTES. OVERLAND FLOW AND OTHER HYDRAULIC
CALCULATIONS ARE BASED UPON THE MANNING'S EQUATION.

2. THE DRAINAGE AREA MAPS AND CALCULATIONS PROVIDED HEREIN ARE
PRELIMINARY IN NATURE, AND ARE INTENDED TO PROVIDE A CONCEPTUAL
DESIGN ONLY. FINAL SITE DRAINAGE DESIGN MAY VARY FROM THE
CONCEPTUAL DESIGN SHOWN HEREIN, BUT MUST BE BASED IN SOUND
ENGINEERING PRINCIPLES IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS
DRAINAGE CRITERIA MANUAL.

3. UNDER DEVELOPED CONDITIONS ALL UPSTREAM FLOWS SHALL BE ACCEPTED ON
SITE AS THEY CURRENTLY EXIST.

4. TOPOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION IS FOR DRAINAGE PURPOSES ONLY AND IS NOT
TO BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION.  TOPOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION SHOWN IS
DERIVED FROM THE UNITED STATES GEOGRAPHICAL SURVEY(USGS), [BELL,
BURNET, MCLENNAN COUNTIES LIDAR, 2011] AS DOWNLOADED FROM THE TNRIS
DATAHUB WEB 2021-07-21.

5. IN NO INSTANCE SHALL A POINT DISCHARGE BE ALLOWED ONTO AN ADJACENT
DOWNSTREAM PROPERTY, UNLESS APPROXIMATING A PREDEVELOPMENT
CONDITION. THE USE OF LEVEL SPREADER(S) OR AN EQUIVALENT STRUCTURE
SHALL BE USED TO PREVENT A POINT DISCHARGE.

6. UNDER PROPOSED CONDITIONS, THE SITE SHALL BE GRADED SUCH THAT ANY
RUNOFF WILL SHEET FLOW ACROSS THE PROPERTY LINE ONTO THE ADJACENT
DOWNSTREAM PROPERTY OWNER, UNLESS APPROXIMATING A
PREDEVELOPMENT CONDITION..

Drainage Basin

STATE  OF  TEXAS

L I CENSEDPROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

ACE RENEAU

136141

04
/2

6/
22

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VIII.2.

Page 166 of 186

AutoCAD SHX Text
790

AutoCAD SHX Text
800

AutoCAD SHX Text
MITCHELL & ASSOCIATES, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING & SURVEYING 102 N. COLLEGE KILLEEN, TEXAS 76541 PHONE: (254) 634-5541 FAX: (254) 634-2141

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEXAS BOARD OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 3241 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T. B. P. L. S. FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 100204-00

AutoCAD SHX Text
22-026-D-S

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARCH 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
**

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 BLOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.454 Ac.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FB/LB:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA:

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMARKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.B.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPROPERTY OWNER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILMTECH COM LLC 425 N 8TH ST. KILLEEN, TX 76541

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USURVEYOR/ENGINEER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
MITCHELL & ASSOCIATES, INC. P.O. BOX 1088 KILLEEN, TX 76540

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/26/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF HH COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRB

AutoCAD SHX Text
DA A 65.86 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE AREA ABBREVIATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERSHED LETTER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA (ACRES) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERSHED I.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Storm Water Discharge Summary

AutoCAD SHX Text
DA A

AutoCAD SHX Text
25 Year Storm Event

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing (cfs)

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
Developed (cfs)

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
Change (cfs)

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 Year Storm Event

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing (cfs)

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
Developed (cfs)

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
Change (cfs)

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.73



99999

18291827

<NULL>

<NULL>

13805

1832

13901 <NULL>

13939

<NULL>

<NULL>

13877

13801

13777

14111

13849

<NULL>

1

2310

13436

2301

<NULL>

1901 <NULL>

<NULL>

<NULL>

13960

<NULL>
Comanche
Gap Park

E KNIGHTS WAY

W
AR

RI
O

RS
PA

TH
RD

RUIZ DR

CADDO LN

ANCIENT OAKS B

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

P22-14

Filmtech Addition

Location Map

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VIII.2.

Page 167 of 186



1 
 

FILMTECH ADDITION 

P22-14 Minor/Amending Plat – FilmTech Addition  
 

Plat Distributed to HH Staff: April 29, 2022 
Comments Sent to Engineer: May 16, 2022 

 
Planning & Development 

1. Applicant must delineate the location of the proposed driveway and provide a 1’ non-access easement 
along the remaining portion of FM 2410.  

2. Dedicate a 30’ passage/access easement to property on east side, to plan for future development. 
Access only need be dedicated at this point, applicant will not be required to install an improved 
surface for this easement at this time. 

3. Applicant is advised that the Knight’s Way Overlay District requirements apply to development on 
this parcel. Additionally, sidewalks will be required upon site development. (Per §154.04, F, 1, 
sidewalk development not required on large-lot residential subdivisions, where lots are one acre or 
larger in size.) 

4. Applicant is advised that this parcel is currently zoned R-1, One Family Dwelling District. As such 
the plat was only reviewed according to those code requirements.  

 
Public Works, Mark Hyde  
 
City Engineer, Otto Wiederhold  
 
Fire Marshal, Brad Alley  
 
Building Official, Mike Beard 
 
ONCOR, Steven Hugghins 

1. Oncor to keep existing facilities and easements. 
 
Century Link, Chris McGuire 
 
Time Warner Cable/Spectrum, Shaun Whitehead 
 
ATMOS, Rusty Fischer 
 
Clearwater UWCD, Dirk Aaron 
 
TxDOT, Richard Rangel & Stephen Kasberg 
 

AGENDA ITEM #VIII.2.

Page 168 of 186



1 
 

FILMTECH ADDITION 

P22-09 Final Plat – FilmTech Addition 
 

Plat Distributed to HH Staff: March 31, 2022 
Comments Sent to Engineer: April 14, 2022 

 
Planning & Development, Kristina Ramirez & Yvonne Spell  

1. Applicant must delineate the location of the proposed driveway and provide a 1’ non-access 
easement along the remaining portion of FM 2410.  

2. Pending TXDOT’s approval of the driveway location, a 30’ passage/access easement 
across the front of the property may also be required. 

3. Applicant shall illustrate and annotate the setbacks on the plat dedication page. 
4. Applicant shall provide a storm water plan/drainage analysis.  
5. Per §154.21(C)(1)(b) the title block shall include the proposed subdivision name, phase, 

block and lot numbers, current legal description (or reference thereto), acreage, name and 
address of property owner, name and address of surveyor/engineer, date of survey, date of 
preparation and page content title. This title block shall be present on each page of the plat. 
Please amend the title block per Ordinance. 

6. Applicant shall amend the plat dedication page to include all signature blocks required for 
a final plat and for Bell County Public Health. 

7. FM 2410 is identified as an Arterial on the City’s Thoroughfare Plan. As such a 120-foot 
right-of-way (ROW) is required. Applicant shall provide half of the required ROW needed 
to meet the 120-foot requirement. This ROW dedication will require this plat to be 
processed as a Final Plat. 

8. Applicant shall provide a digital copy of the final plat per Section 154.20(B)(3)(c). 
Digital final plat files should be submitted in DXF, DWG or GIS shapefile/feature 
class/coverage format. 

9. Applicant is advised that the Knight’s Way Overlay District requirements apply to 
development on this parcel. Additionally, sidewalks will be required upon site 
development.  

10. Applicant is advised that this parcel is currently zoned R-1, One Family Dwelling District. 
As such the plat was only reviewed according to those code requirements.  
 

Public Works, Mark Hyde  

1. Sanitary sewer is not available at this location.  Since the lot is more than 300’ from the 
nearest sanitary sewer, an on-site sewer facility is acceptable.   

2. The Bell County Health Department permits and inspects all septic systems within the 
City of Harker Heights. 
 

City Engineer, Otto Wiederhold  

• No comments 

AGENDA ITEM #VIII.2.

Page 169 of 186



2 
 

Fire Marshal, Brad Alley  

• No comments 

Building Official, Mike Beard 

• No comments received and may be forthcoming. 

ONCOR, Steven Hugghins 

• No comments received and may be forthcoming. 

Century Link/ Lumen, Chris McGuire 

•  No comments received and may be forthcoming. 

Spectrum, Shaun Whitehead 

• No comments received and may be forthcoming. 

ATMOS, Rusty Fischer 

• No comments received and may be forthcoming. 

TxDOT, Richard Rangel & Stephen Kasberg 

1. Requests a 1’ non-access easement except where the driveway will be located 
2. Applicant will need to contact TxDOT for driveway access permits. 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #VIII.2.

Page 170 of 186



 

City Council Memorandum 
 

 
FROM: The Office of the City Manager DATE: June 14, 2022 

 
DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVAL OF A FINAL PLAT REFERRED TO AS COMANCHE 
LAND, THIRD UNIT, ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED BEING ALL THAT CERTAIN 0.77 ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN THE H.B. LITTLEFIED SURVEY, A-511, BELL COUNTY, 
TEXAS, BEING ALL OF LOTS 1 AND 8, BLOCK 37, COMANCHE LAND THIRD UNIT, AND 
UN-RECORDED SUBDIVISION IN THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, 
TEXAS, SAID LOTS BEING DESCRIBED IN A DEED TO MONICA KANKELFITZ, 
RECORDED IN VOLUME 3757, PAGE 245, DEED RECORDS OF BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, 
AND SAID LOTS BEING FURTHER DESCRIBED AS “TRACT I” CALLED 0.346 ACRE 
TRACT AND “TRACT III” CALLED 0.42 ACRE TRACT IN A DEED TO JAMES L. DAHM & 
WIFE, PAOLA DAHM, RECORDED IN VOLUME 1312, PAGE 582, DEED RECORDS OF 
BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION. (PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR) 
 
 
EXPLANATION: 
  
The applicant submitted an application for minor plat approval for approximately 0.77 acres of 
residential land South of Pontotoc Trace and situated between Yuron Trace and Ponca Trace. 
The proposed development will consist of two lots that are currently zoned R-MU (Mixed 
Residential). The 2021 Land Use Plan identifies this parcel for Medium Density Residential 
land use.  
 
The application for this plat case was received on April 27, 2022, staff comments were sent to 
the Engineer on May 11, 2022. Additional Right of Way (ROW) dedication was deemed to be 
required for the plat area. Based on staff’s review of the plat case and the City’s Code of 
Ordinances, this submission did not meet the requirements of a Minor Plat submission at the 
time it was placed on the Planning & Zoning Commission’s agenda. Therefore, the plat was 
considered as a Final Plat and now requires action by the City Council. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff Recommendation 
On May 11, 2022, staff returned comments to the applicant. As of May 25, 2022, revisions 
based on staff comments were received. Staff therefore recommended approval to the 
Planning & Zoning Commission of the Final Plat for the subdivision referred to as Comanche 
Land Third Unit Amending. 
  
  
ACTION TAKEN BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 
  

AGENDA ITEM #VIII.3.

Page 171 of 186



During the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting held on May 25, 2022, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission voted (7-0) to recommend approval of a Final Plat for the subdivision 
referred to as Comanche Land Third Unit Amending, on property described as all that certain 
0.77 acre tract of land situated in the H.B. Littlefield Survey, A-511, Bell County, Texas, being 
all of Lots1 and 18, Block 37, Comanche Land Third Unit, an un-recorded subdivision in the 
City of Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, said lots being described in a deed to Monica 
Kankelfitz, recorded in Volume 3757, Page 245, Deed Records of Bell County, Texas, and said 
Lots being further described as “Tract I” called 0.346 acre tract and “Tract III” called 0.42 acre 
tract in a deed to James L. Dahm & Wife, Paola Dahm, recorded in Volume 1312, Page 582, 
Deed Records of Bell County, Texas, based on staff’s recommendations and findings. 
 
 
ACTION BY THE COUNCIL: 
  

1. Motion to approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove with explanation a request for 
a Final Plat referred to as Comanche Land Third Unit Amending, on property described 
as all that certain 0.77 acre tract of land situated in the H.B. Littlefield Survey, A-511, 
Bell County, Texas, being all of Lots1 and 18, Block 37, Comanche Land Third Unit, an 
un-recorded subdivision in the City of Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, said lots 
being described in a deed to Monica Kankelfitz, recorded in Volume 3757, Page 245, 
Deed Records of Bell County, Texas, and said Lots being further described as “Tract I” 
called 0.346 acre tract and “Tract III” called 0.42 acre tract in a deed to James L. Dahm 
& Wife, Paola Dahm, recorded in Volume 1312, Page 582, Deed Records of Bell 
County, Texas., based on staff’s recommendations and findings.  

2. Any other action desired. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
P22-16_02_Attachments 

AGENDA ITEM #VIII.3.

Page 172 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VIII.3.

Page 173 of 186



AGENDA ITEM #VIII.3.

Page 174 of 186



D E D I C A T I O N  
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS     §     KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 
COUNTY OF  BELL    §  
 
 That Monica Kankelfitz, whose address is 1704 Pontotoc Trace, Harker Heights, Texas, being the 
sole owner(s) of the 0.77 acre tract of land in The City of Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, Situated in 
the H.B. Littlefield Survey, Abstract No. 511, Bell County, Texas, and the land herein described being all 
of Lot 1 and 18, Block 37, Comanche Lnad Third Unit, an un-recorded subdivision in the City of Harker 
Heights, Bell County, Texas, and being described in a deed to Monica Kankelfitz, Recorded in Volume 
3757, Page 245, Deed Records of Bell County, Texas, Same lots being further described in a deed to 
James L. Dahm & wife, Paola Dahm, recorded in Volume 1362, Page 582, Deed Records of Bell County, 
Texas, Which is more fully described in the dedication of Comanche Land, Third Unit – Amended, as an 
addition to The City of Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas. 
 
W I T N E S S the execution hereof, on this ____________ day of  _______________ ,2022. 
 
______________________________                           
Monica Kankelfitz 
Owner 
 
Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Monica Kankelfitz, known to me 
to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument.  It has been acknowledged to me 
that She executed the foregoing instrument as the owner of the property described hereon. 
 
 
NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF TEXAS 
My Commission Expires: 
 
 
____________________________________________________ 

AGENDA ITEM #VIII.3.

Page 175 of 186



A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VIII.3.

Page 176 of 186



NOLANVILLE

1608

1609 1611

1612
1610

1807

1815

1803

1813

1805

1610

1607

1613

1815

1714

1615

1611

1806

1800

1603

1600

1601

1602

1722

1810

1604

<NULL>

<NULL>

1605

1717

1709

1617

1803

1608

1805

1800

1606

1801

1604

1614

16
25

1802

1806

1704

1801

1609

<NULL>

1708

16
19

16
21

1801

1811

1814
1814

1602

1720
1716

<N
U

LL
>

1718

1802

1703

1804

1810

1903

1806

1606

16
23

<NULL>

1800

1808

1606

1809

1803

1711

1705

1601

1701

1812

1608

1613

1604

17
12

1801

1609

17
18

1609

17
04

1700 1702

17
06

1710
1714

17
16

1615

<NULL>

1613
1613

1707

1901
1903 2000

1705 1707

1820

1818

1813

1811

<NULL>
2001

<NULL>

1809

1614

1601

1707

1705 1604 1606
1608

1610

1612

1613
1611

1609
1607

1605

1603

1819

1817

1806

1808

1601

1809

1807
1807

1600

18171815
18131811

912
18091807

18051803

<NULL>

1615
1617

<NULL>

18
08

UTE TRL

PU
EB

LO
 T

RC
E

A
ZTEC

 TR
C

E

UTE TRL

YU
RO

N 
TR

CE

PO
NC

A
TR

CE

PO
NC

A 
TR

CE

W
AR

R
IO

RS
 P

AT
H 

RD

HOPI TRL

PONTOTOC TRCE
LIBBY LNMOHICAN TRL

EMMA NAYLOR CT

MAYA TRL

SE
M

IN
O

LE
 T

RC
E

PARKER LN

AZTEC TRCE

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

P22-16

Comanche Land Third Unit Amended

Location Map

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #VIII.3.

Page 177 of 186



1 
 

COMANCHE LAND THIRD UNIT 
AMENDING 

P22-16 Amending Plat – Comanche Land Third Unit Amending 
 

Plat Distributed to HH Staff: April 29, 2022 
Comments Sent to Engineer: May 11, 2022 

 
Planning & Development 

1. Mobility 2030 indicates Pontotoc Trace is defined as a Collector. Collector street should have 
minimum of 70’ ROW. Dedicate half of remaining right of way where ROW does not meet 
minimum required. This dedication action will require plat be designated as a Final Plat, 
please add all required signature blocks per §154.22 (B) (1) (q), and change plat type to “Final 
Plat” on all submitted documents. 

2. Dedication statement on face of plat and separate dedication instrument do not state that 
easements will be dedicated to the City; please add verbiage indicating utility and/or drainage 
easements will be dedicated to the City of Harker Heights, in addition to ROW as mentioned 
in comment #1. 

3. Correct spelling of “LAND” on separate dedication instrument (currently shows “Lnad”, 4th 
line). 

4. Please add location of sidewalk for Lot 2A (Sidewalks required for Collector Streets shall be 
6’, all other sidewalks shall be 5’) See §154.40 for specs on sidewalk location, width, etc.  

 
Public Works, Mark Hyde  

 
City Engineer, Otto Wiederhold  
 
Fire Marshal, Brad Alley  
 
Building Official, Mike Beard 
 
ONCOR, Steven Hugghins 

• Oncor to keep existing facilities and easements. 

Century Link, Chris McGuire 
 

AGENDA ITEM #VIII.3.

Page 178 of 186



2 
 

Time Warner Cable/Spectrum, Shaun Whitehead 
 
ATMOS, Rusty Fischer 
 
Clearwater UWCD, Dirk Aaron 

 

AGENDA ITEM #VIII.3.

Page 179 of 186



City Council Memorandum

FROM: The Office of the City Manager DATE: June 14, 2022

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, SUSPENDING THE JUNE 17, 2022, EFFECTIVE 
DATE OF ONCOR ELECTRIC DELIVERY COMPANY'S REQUESTED RATE CHANGE TO 
PERMIT THE CITY TIME TO STUDY THE REQUEST AND TO ESTABLISH REASONABLE 
RATES; APPROVING COOPERATION WITH THE STEERING COMMITTEE OF CITIES 
SERVED AND SERVICES CONSULTING AND TO HIRE TOONCOR BY LEGAL 
NEGOTIATE WITH THE COMPANY AND DIRECT ANY NECESSARY LITIGATION AND 
APPEALS; FINDING THAT THE MEETING AT WHICH THIS RESOLUTION IS PASSED IS 
OPEN OF NOTICE REQUIRING LAW; BY AS PUBLIC THE TO THIS REQUIRED 
RESOLUTION TO BE SENT TO THE COMPANY AND LEGAL COUNSEL FOR THE 
STEERING COMMITTEE AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION. (FINANCE DIRECTOR)

EXPLANATION:
On Friday, May 13, 2022, Oncor Electric Delivery Company (Oncor) filed a Statement of Intent 
to Increase Rates with all cities in its service area that retain original jurisdiction. Oncor is 
seeking to increase system-wide transmission and distribution rates by about $251 million or 
approximately 4.5% over present revenues. This is being done through a rate increase of 
about 11.2% in residential rates and 1.6% in street lighting rates. This equates to a residential 
customer using 1,300 kWh per month seeing a bill increase of about $6.02 month. 
 
The attached resolution suspends the June 17, 2022 effective date of Oncor's rate increase for 
the maximum period allowed by law to allow the City, in conjunction with the Steering 
Committee of Cities Served by Oncor, to evaluate the filing, determine whether the filing 
complies with law, and if lawful, to determine further strategy, including settlement, to pursue.
 
Although Oncor has increased its rates many times over the past few years, this is the first 
comprehensive base rate case since March 2017.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approving the Resolution.

ACTION BY THE COUNCIL:
1. Motion to APPROVE/DISAPPROVE a Resolution of the City of Harker Heights, Texas, 

suspending the June 17, 2022, effective date of Oncor Electric Delivery Company's 
requested rate change to permit the City time to study the request and to establish 
reasonable rates; approving cooperation with the Steering Committee of Cities Served 
by Oncor to hire legal and consulting services and to negotiate with the Company and 
direct any necessary litigation and appeals; finding that the meeting at which this 

AGENDA ITEM #VIII.4.

Page 180 of 186



resolution is passed is open to the public as required by law; requiring notice of this 
resolution to the Company and legal counsel for the Steering Committee.

2. Any other action desired.

ATTACHMENTS:
RESOLUTION

AGENDA ITEM #VIII.4.

Page 181 of 186



 

RESOLUTION NO._________________ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, 
TEXAS SUSPENDING THE JUNE 17, 2022 EFFECTIVE DATE OF ONCOR 
ELECTRIC DELIVERY COMPANY’S REQUESTED RATE CHANGE TO 
PERMIT THE CITY  TIME  TO  STUDY   THE   REQUEST   AND   TO   
ESTABLISH   REASONABLE RATES;    APPROVING    COOPERATION   WITH  
THE  STEERING  COMMITTEE  OF CITIES  SERVED  BY  ONCOR  TO  HIRE  
LEGAL  AND  CONSULTING  SERVICES AND TO NEGOTIATE WITH THE 
COMPANY AND DIRECT ANY NECESSARY LITIGATION AND APPEALS; 
FINDING THAT THE MEETING AT WHICH THIS RESOLUTION IS  PASSED IS 
OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS REQUIRED  BY LAW; REQUIRING NOTICE OF 
THIS RESOLUTION TO BE SENT TO THE COMPANY AND LEGAL COUNSEL 
FOR THE STEERING COMMITTEE 
 
WHEREAS, on or about May 13, 2022, Oncor Electric Delivery Company (Oncor), 
pursuant to PURA §§ 33.001 and 36.001 filed with the City of Harker Heights, Texas a 
Statement of Intent to increase electric transmission and distribution rates in all 
municipalities exercising original jurisdiction within its service area effective June 17, 
2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Harker Heights, Texas is a member of the Steering Committee of 
Cities Served by Oncor (“Steering Committee”) and will cooperate with the 169 similarly 
situated city members and other city participants in conducting a review of the Company’s 
application and to hire and direct legal counsel and consultants and to prepare a common 
response and to negotiate with the Company prior to getting reasonable rates and direct any 
necessary litigation; and 
 
WHEREAS, PURA § 36.108 grants local regulatory authorities the right to suspend the 
effective date of proposed rate changes for ninety (90) days after the date the rate change 
would otherwise be effective; and 
 
WHEREAS, PURA § 33.023 provides that costs incurred by Cities in ratemaking 
proceedings are to be reimbursed by the regulated utility. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF  
HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 
 
1. That the June 17, 2022 effective date of the rate request submitted by Oncor on or 

about May 13, 2022, be suspended for the maximum period allowed by law to 
permit adequate time  to review the proposed changes and to establish reasonable 
rates. 

 
2. As indicated in the City’s resolution approving membership in the Steering Committee, 

the Executive Committee of Steering Committee is authorized to hire and direct legal 
counsel and consultants, negotiate with the Company, make recommendations 
regarding reasonable rates, and to intervene and direct any necessary administrative 
proceedings or court litigation associated with an appeal of a rate ordinance and the 
rate case filed with the City or Public Utility Commission. 

 

AGENDA ITEM #VIII.4.

Page 182 of 186



3. That the City’s reasonable rate case expenses shall be reimbursed by Oncor. 
 
4. That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution is passed is open to the public as required by law and the public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required. 

 
5. A copy of this Resolution shall be sent to Oncor, Care of Howard V. Fisher, Oncor 

Electric Delivery Company LLC, 1616 Woodall Rodgers Freeway, Dallas, Texas 
75202 and to Thomas Brocato, Counsel to the Steering Committee, at Lloyd Gosselink 
Rochelle & Townsend, P.C., P.O. Box 1725, Austin, Texas 78767-1725. 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 14th day of June 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Spencer H. Smith, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
Julie Helsham, City Secretary 

AGENDA ITEM #VIII.4.

Page 183 of 186



 

City Council Memorandum 
 

 
FROM: The Office of the City Manager DATE: June 14, 2022 

 
DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT FOR 
THE ANNUAL SUPPLY OF WATER METERS IN THE AMOUNT OF $144,717.60 TO CORE 
& MAIN AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION. (PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR) 
 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The bidding process began with the City advertising for bids for the annual supply of water 
meters on May 8th and May 15th, 2022.  A total of four (4) bid packets were distributed. On May 
31, 2022 at 2:00 p.m., three sealed bids for the purchase of water meters were opened.  The 
following two bids met specifications:  
                                                                                         

Company  Location  Total Bid  Scrap Meter 
Allowance  

Core & Main Belton, TX Direct Read 
$144,717.60 Yes 

Core & Main Belton, TX Radio Read 
202,696.50 Yes 

Zenner USA submitted a bid for positive displacement oscillating piston water meters.  The bid 
specification was for positive displacement nutating disc water meters. 
Because of supply availability, Core and Main included a bid for radio read water meters.  The 
radio read meters could be delivered much sooner than the direct read water meters. 
Core & Main's direct read water meters met the required warranty and regulatory specifications.  
The contract period is for one year from the date of award with renewal for two additional one-
year options.   
$75,000 is budgeted in the FY 2021-22 Water Operating Budget for water meters.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The Public Works Director recommends awarding the contract for the annual supply of water 
meters to Core & Main in the amount of $144,717.60. 
 
ACTION BY THE COUNCIL: 
1. Motion to approve/disapprove a resolution awarding a contract for the annual supply of        
water meters to Core & Main in the amount of $144,717.60. 
2. Any other action desired. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Bid Tabulation 
2022 Water Meter Bid Resolution 

AGENDA ITEM #VIII.5.

Page 184 of 186



3 8. mu. 8 no .o_ Nw oo. o_ 8 :u:.:.S€cTm

8

_
am OOLIH. 5 oO.m_ 8 ?:T~

8 on. C mm oo.® 8 00. W 3 55,3

3 3 . F S on .m 5 00. E 6.5

aw 00.0 8 0030 E 00 S ..Emx_,Em

mm Q0. W 8 DO.«w 3 00. N 8 ..im x in

SE E5 SE :5 SE :5 3E E5 muz<>>Dd< Ems. nsbm

orm§;& 3.22.36 §.rF.:; e_..__§

o?sigw 5.1% 9 .3 :..3 om_Sam E Fm __a§§_s§
s 2 V

25. ESE. 5 .3. Smz E5 28 ..N. 2 =2. 9; 29.3 $5.: 5.2;

. . . . as 5;, SEE Ea 532:2
8.¥o_w o_wowo3._5o:: :3? omFr m,3 Pw

_g%§_:.. Es.
5 2 M

. . ., . 8.opm;: Sam.
8 $9 .m3.5

_
S 25. mP: m: 5 2 A

:5... E5. 52.: 8:2 ans 3: :_ . .a33_OnW_ .:::w..E_a .5
..._>.,:__...._xu,,.m_u.__a:_.;m__,2

«Q. so am«Ema 533358 mmmi 8 5 2: d

3 E5563 5.3.: mm.._aim 1% X in

.55 mu:.2_=: .23 3_..2_.5 .55 3__.2_.5 .23 mu:.2_.5 5.. 353a E5 >6 .5:

\l \l
xl. umm8_2o5_u< E:§aE.<

nee» .:am_E.<

«ma .m=:u~

HE:3m:._m:m_

mmx?n _E:_wm

Ens. .m9.3

mnxwk.ce:um
Ems. a E5

.E.a SA E NS .5 >22 "Ezra
S.m~a.~mm.- Ea

m5E_>_ ~_m._.<>>E: ZO_h<.5m_(» ca
mica: z$E<: 3 >.:u

>.:EEaU

Rowimk

AGENDA ITEM #VIII.5.

Page 185 of 186



RESOLUTION NO._____________ 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT FOR THE ANNUAL SUPPLY OF 
WATER METERS IN THE AMOUNT OF $144,717.60 TO CORE & MAIN. 
 
WHEREAS, the City has a need for water meters for new construction and the replacement 
of old water meters.  
 
WHEREAS, the City advertised for bids for water meters on May 08, 2022 and May 15, 
2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has funds budgeted in the FY2021-2022 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City sent bid packets to four (4) vendors; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City opened the sealed bids at 2:00 p.m. on May 31, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City received two (2) bids meeting specifications. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Harker 
Heights, Texas: 
 

1. To award the contract for the annual supply of water meters in the amount of 
$144,717.60 to Core & Main. 

2. That the City Manager, David Mitchell, is hereby authorized and instructed to act in 
the name and behalf of the City of Harker Heights to execute and deliver such contract 
and to do and perform every other act as he may deem necessary and appropriate in 
his sole discretion to accomplish the purposes of this resolution. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, THIS 14TH DAY OF JUNE, 2022 AT 
WHICH MEETING A QUORUM WAS PRESENT, HELD IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
PROVISIONS OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, CHAPTER 551.  
 

 
____________________________________ 

       Spencer H. Smith, Mayor 
       City of Harker Heights 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Juliette Helsham, City Secretary 
City of Harker Heights 
 

AGENDA ITEM #VIII.5.

Page 186 of 186


	Agenda
	IV. 1. Proclamation
	V. 1. Minutes
	VII. 1. Staff Report - Pdf
	Proposed Resolution 
	General Certificate of City of Harker Heights Series 2022A

	VII. 2. Staff Report - Pdf
	Z22-13_02-Attachments
	Z22-13_03-PropOrdinance

	VII. 3. Staff Report - Pdf
	Z22-12_03-PropOrdinance
	Z22-12_02-Attachments
	Applicant_Response_05232022

	VII. 4. Staff Report - Pdf
	Z22-14_02-Attachments
	Z22-14_03-PropOrdinance

	VII. 5. Staff Report - Pdf
	Z22-11_03-PropOrdinance
	Z22-11_02-Attachments

	VIII. 1. Staff Report - Pdf
	P22-15_02_Attachments

	VIII. 2. Staff Report - Pdf
	P22-14_02_Attachments

	VIII. 3. Staff Report - Pdf
	P22-16_02_Attachments

	VIII. 4. Staff Report - Pdf
	RESOLUTION

	VIII. 5. Staff Report - Pdf
	Bid Tabulation
	2022 Water Meter Bid Resolution


